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Great Hearts America — Texas
Federal Employer Identification Number: 43-1973126
Certificate of Board

We, the undersigned, certify that the attached Flaancial arnd Compliance Report of Great Hearis

America — Taxas was reviewed and [check one) X approved dizapproved for the year

ended June 30, 2016 at a meeting of the governing body of the charter holder on the 25 day of October,

2015,

P o 4,

Ward Huseth, Board Secretary Hailer, HWA President

If the governing body of the charter holder disapproved the independent auditor's report, the reasonis)
for disapproving it is (are]: (attach list as necessary)
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Padgett Stratemann

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors
Great Hearts America = Texas
San Antonia, Texas

Report on the Financiol Statements

We heve audited the secompanving financial statements of Great Hearls Amercd — Texas (the
"Organization”], which comprise the statements of financlal position as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and
the related statements of activities and cash flows for the vears then ended and the related notes to tha
fimancial siatements.

Monagement's Responsibility for the Finoncial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal contral relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
EFran.

Auditor's Responsibility

Dur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 'We
conducted our audits in accordance with awditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
america and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stondards;
Bsued by the Comptrolier General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material migstatement of the financial ztatements, whether due to fraud or
arror,  In making those risk assessmaents, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Organization’s pregaration and fair presentation of the financial statements in crder 1o design audit
proceduras that are appropriate In the clrcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effecthvensss of the Organization's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial staternents.

BLISTIN HOUSTOMN SAMN ANTOMNIO
11 SARTON SPRINGS ROAD. SUITE S50 1880 POST QWK BOULEVERD, SLIME 1100 104! %.E. LODP 310, SUITE 1100 TOLL FREE: 2040 B73 4955
ALISTIN, TEXAS 7R7(08 HOUSTON, TEEAS 77050 SAN ANTONIO, TEXAS THZ16 WER: FEDGETT-0PL 006

513 476 J7LT 712335 ER3D 210 E33 RiEl




We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained i3 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
aur audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinien, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Organization as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the changes in its net asssts and
cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of Amarica.

orther Maotters
Other Infarmation

Owr audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole,
The Other Supplemental information, as listed in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not 2 required part of the finencial statements. Such information (5 the
responsibility of management and was derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying accounting
and other recards used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected ta the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and othar
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themsehees, and other
additional procedures in gccordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, In our opinion, the Other Supplemental Information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Reguired by Government Awditing Standords

In accordance with Governmend Auditing Stondards, we have also issued our report dated October 25,
2016 on our consideration of the Organization’s intermal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of Internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and nat to provide an opinkon on intemal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an Integral part of an audit performed In
accordance with Government Avditing Standords in considering the Organization’s Internal control over
financial reporting and compliance,

{Pa.iaﬂ!ﬂ,, Stiatim~amm, + Lo y L.L.P,

San Anlonio, Texas
October 25, 20146
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Great Hearts America — Texas
Statements of Financial Position

Exhibit A-1
Jure 30, 2016 and 2015

Current Assets

iCash and cash equivalents

Due from government agsncias

Prepaid expenses

Unconditional promises to give —~ current portion
Jther current assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets

Property and equipment = net

Land held for sale

Lease deposits

Lean issuance costs — net of amortization of 50
{582,359 in 2015}

Unconditional promises b give —net

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and other liabilities
Duse 1o related party

Retainage payable

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Total current lizhilities
Long-Term Liabilitles — notes payahle
Total Hahillties
et Assets
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

Total met assets

Total llabilities and net assets

Motes to the financial stotements form an integral port of these stafements.
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2016

% 2,087,584
2,686,712
319,264
1,796,452
5,894
5,895,306
11,459,808
267,878
140,640

489,493
B44,927

13,202,746
4 20,098,652
——_—
§ 382,837
180,055
7,710
560,616
104,612
1,235,830
12,528,917
13,764,747
1,721,027
4,612,878

6,333,905

5 20,098,652

2015

4 319,056
629,877
20 508
783,000
45,111
1,806,552
9,005,997
267,878
140,640

284,854
1,680,255

11,379,664
% 13,186,216
=——
5 1,084,065
102,742
528,588
44,530
807,371
3367696
8,280,222
10,647,918
1,680,729
857,509

2,538,208

513,186,216



Great Hearts America — Texas
Statement of Activities

Exhibit A-2

Year Ended June 30, 2016

Revenues and Other Suppaort
Lacal support

Contribustions

Foad service

Other revenue

Total local support

State program revenues:
Foundation Scheod Program — State of Texas
Other state ald

Total stale program ravenues

Federal program revenuas;

Tida |
IBES B clustar
Titka 1, Part &

Chid Nutrition clustes
Total federal program revenues

Met aasets released lrom restrictons —
restrictions satishied by payments

Toral revenues and other support

Expenses

11  Emskructional

13 Curriculum devalopment and Instructional
s1aff development

23 School leadership

31 Guidance, couneeling, and evaluation
tardices

33 Heglh services

35 Fpod cprvices

36 Extracurricular activilias

41 General edminisiration

51 Plapt maintenancs and operationg

53 Data processing Sefuicas

61 Community services

71 DebEserndce

81 Fundraising

Total gapanses
Change in net asseis
Wer assets at beginning of year

Met assets at end of vear

Mates to the financlol stotements form an integral part of these statements,

LFnrestrictad

§ 812,576
926, 7EL

3,739,357

12,874,774
16,614 131

8,285584

14,240
1145428

50,760
165,648
414,010
264,645

1,979,141
2,237,588
274,580
258,861
£26,975
534,032

16,572,893
40,238
1,680,789
$ 1,721,027

Poge &

Tempararily
Restricted

5 1,050,000
208,056

1,258,056
14,796,691
289,585
15,086,876
12,538

107 418
41,588
123,267

285,211

(12,874,774}
3,755,265

3,755,360
B57,509

L 4512878

Total

3 3882576
2,056
926,781

4997413

14,796,891
2B, 085

15,086,876

12,938
107,418
41,588
123,267

2E5,211

0,268,500

B,285,584

14,240
1,146,428

50,760
165,548
414,010
280,546

1,970,141
2,237,938
279,580
258,861
826,975
634,532

16,573,893
3,795,607
2,538,298

& B,333,905



Great Hearts America — Texas
Statement of Activities

Exhibit A-2

Year Ended June 30, 2015

Termporarily
Unrestrictad Restricted Tartal
Revenuss and Other Support
Leseal quppart:
Contributions 4§ 3ER1,DEG 3 500,000 5 4,3E1,086
Foad cervice . 28 008 28,008
Cther revenue 252,786 . 252,786
Total local support 4,133,872 538,008 4,661,860
StEte program revenues:
Foundation School Program = State of Taxas - 34963412 3,963,412
Cthier state ald - 14 14
Tatal state program revenues . 3863 426 1,953 416
Federal program revenues:
PCS Start-up grant - H08. 262 GOE, 962
IDEA B chusber . 53,125 53,125
Child Nutrition cluster - 28,239 28,239
Tetal faderal grogram revenues - B80.326 Ga0,326
Met z5sets released from restrictions =
restricticns satisfled by payments 4,324,251 {4,324,251]
Tovtal revenues and othes Support 8,458,123 EST,504 0,315,632
Expenses
11 mstructional 2,763,791 - 2,763,791
13 Cusriculum develepment and instructional
staff development 48,9495 - 48,995
H Instructional leadership 19,353 - 28,352
23 5chool loadership 584,535 584,535
it Guidance, counsaling, and evaluation
SRTVIDES 208 - B, 208
i3 Health services 43,739 - 43,738
35 Food servicas 148,594 - 148,594
36 Extracurricufar activities 499,482 - 99,452
41 Generzl administration 1,291,911 - 1,291,911
51 #ant maintenance and operations 553,448 - 563,448
53 Data processing sarvices 149,538 - 149,538
a1 Comemunity services 54955 - 54,955
71 Debtzendce 325,685 - 326,535
81 Fundralsing 430,322 - 400,322
Total expenses 6610555 - 5,510,555
Change in net adsels 1.B47 568 B5T.509 2,705,007
Met deficit &t beginning of year (168 779) . {166,779}
et assats at and of year 5 1,680,789 & BETHE 5 2,538,298

Mates to the finoncial statemeants form on integral part of these stotements.
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Great Hearts America — Texas
Statements of Cash Flows

Exhibit A-3

Years Ended June 20, 2016 and 2015

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Change in net assets
Adjustrments to reconclkz change In net assets to nat
cash provided by (used In} operating actlvities;
Depreciation
Amortization of loas sssance cost
Changes in:
Due froen povernmental agencies
Pregaid expenses
Lease deposits
Unconditional promiies to give
Dther current aisets
Accounts payable and other liabifies
and retzinage payable
Due to related party
Accrued expenses
Deferrad revenue

Net cash provided by (used in} operating activities

Cash Flowrs From Inwesting Actheities
Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of land held foar sabe
Met cach w=ed i Irvesting actiitiog
Cash Flaws Fram Financing Activities
Payments on &xans and notes payable
Praceeds from fedns and notes payadie
Loan issuance costs
Net cash provided by financing activities

Met increase [dacreasa) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemaontal Disclosures of Cash Flow Infarmation
Cagh paid for inberast

Proceeds from loan depodited in stcrow

Lozns pald off thraugh retinance

fotes fo the financiel stotements form gn integral port of these stotements.
Poge 7

2016
5 3,795,607

70,007
2B4,B54

(2,056,835)
(289,756)

{178,084}
35,117

(1,222,508)
77,313
516,086

{502,755}

734,044

(2,724,71E)

FI:?H'I?IE!

A 148,805
(489,453)

3,758,202

1,768,525

319,056

5 2,087,584

& -EI.?IT-I!

2015
5 2705077

28,454
1235975

[553 542)
152 604
{79,840)

{2003, 258)
{38,498)

205,074
102, 742
44,530

[575,.629)

| LB9 E51

{7.506,681)
[267,878)

7,774,569

{1, 780,000)
8,280 222

[408.829]

5,081,383

(1872827

2,191 BA3
3 313,056
E 1132;'."1}9
% i B00O00

o




Great Hearts America — Texas
Motes to the Financial Statements

1 Organization and Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Entity, Operations, and Nature of Activities

Great Hearts Armarica — Texas |[the “Organization”} £ a not-for-profit 501(c){3) corporation established in
the state of Texas 1o operate public charter schools with open admissions policies in Texas, The
Organization was originally established in 2002 for the purpose of providing education under the name of
sister Cresk Center for Liberal Arts. A Restated Certificate of Formation with New amendments was filed
on February 17, 2012 to change the Organization's name to Great Hearts America — Texas and amend It5
purpose to develop each student’s academic potential, personal character, and leadership qualities
through an academically rigorous and content-rich educational program grounded in the classical liberal
arts tradition and to strive to give every student the education he or she deserves and needs. The primarny
goal of the Organization is to graduste thoughtful leaders of character whao will contribute to a maore
philosophical, humane, and just society. Mo assets were transferred in the reformstion process,

The Organization is the charter holder for all Great Hearts academies operated in Texas. The Crganization
has a sole corporate member, Great Hearts America, an Arizona not-for-prafit 501(c)(3) corporation, as
permitted by the Texas Business Organizations Code. This nonprofit corporate structure i infended to
rnaintain the integrity of the national Great Hearts academic and programmatic moedel, while also allewing
for local input and control.

Fursuant to the bylaws of the Organization, the Board of Directors (the "Board”) will be comprised of not
less than three and not more than seven members. Each director will serve a one-year term or until his
or her successor is appointed, and a director whose term has expired may be appainted to succeed him
or herself. The Board is responsible for the adoption and implementation of policy for the Organization
and for the management, operation, and accountability of the charter school in all locations. At June 30,
2016 and 2015, there are six and four directors, respectively,

In Movember 2012, the Texas 5tate Board of Education ("TEA") approved the Organization's first charter
authorizing the opening of at least two K-12 campuses in and around San Antonio, Texas. According to
the terms of the charter, the charter shall be in effect from the date of execution through July 31, 2018,
unless renewed ar terminated. The charter may be renewed for an additional period of ten years. The
Drganization opened Great Hearts Academy = Monte Vista [Morth and South campuses) on August 18,
2004,

In bune 2014, the TEA also approved an expansion amendment to the charter, allowing the Organization
to open up to two additional campuses (Great Hearts Academy — Dallas and Great Hearls Academy —
Ireing) to serve families In those additbonal geceraphic territorles effectles luly 1, 2015 The TEA also
approved an amendment in Jure to increase the charter’s mazimum enrollment of the Organization from
1,965 to 3,930 effective July 1, 2015, In January 2015, TEA approved a nonexpansion amendment for
Great Hearts to open 4 third campus in 5an Antonio (Great Hearts Academy = Morthern Daks), in place of
the previously approved campus Great Hearls Academy — Dallas. As a result of these amendmants, the
Organization operates four campuses as of July 1, 2015 Great Hearts Academy — Mante Vista North;
Great Hearts Academy — Monte Vista South; Great Hearts Academy — Northern Oaks; and Great Hearts
Academy = Irving. The Organizaticn does ot conduct any cther charter or nroncharter activities.
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https://per$on.al

Great Hearts America — Texas
Motes to the Financial Statements

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements were prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
sccepied in the United States of America ("US. GAAPY), The Financial Accounting Standerds Board
[“FA5B") is the accepted standard setting body for establishing not-for-profit accounting and financial
reporting principles,  Accordingly, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized
when they are incurred.

Support and revenue are reported as an increase in unrestricted net assets unless use of the related assets
Iz imited by donar-imposed restrictions. Expenses are reported a3 decreases in unrestricted net assets.
Gains and losses on Investments and other assets or llabilities are reported as incredses or decreases in
unrestricted net assets unless their use |5 restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law, Expirations of
temporary restrictions on net azzets [eg, the donor stipulated purpose has been fulfilled and/or the
stipulated time period has elapsed| are reportad as reclassifications between the applicable classes of net
assels,

Use of Estimotes

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.5, GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and Habilities at the date of the financial staterments and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates,

Basis of Presentation
Met assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and kosses are classified as unrestrictad, temporarily restricted,
and permanently restricted based upon the following criteria.

Unrestricted Net Asseds - Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets that are not subject to donor-
imposed stipulations, Unrestricted net assets result from operating revenues, unrestricted contributions,
and unrestricted dividend and interest income, Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific
purpeses by action of the Board. The Organization had unrestricted net assets of 31,721,027 and
51,680,789 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respactively.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Temporarily restricted net assets consist of assets that are subject to
grafitor or denor-imposed stipulations that require the passage of time or the occurrence of a specified
event (actions by the Drganization]. When the donor restriction expires, the temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of activities as net assets
relzased from restrictions. The temporarily restricted description requires the Organization to use state
funding for the benefit of educating stidents enralled in the Organization's schools, Compliance with thiz
requirement allows the QOrganization to use these funds for any allowable schoal purpose 1o furlkber
educate its students. The Organization had 54,612,878 and 5857 509 of tamporarily restricted net asset
at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Foge 2
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Great Hearts America — Texas
Motes to the Financial Statements

Permanently Restricted Net Assets — Permanently restricted net assets consist of net assets required to
be maintained in perpetuity with genly the income to be used for the Organization’s charter school
activities due to grantor donor-imposed restrictions, The Organization had no permanently restricted net
assets at June 30, 2006 and 20015,

Cash and Cosh Equivelents

For financial statement purposas, the Organization considers all highly liguid investment instrume nts with
an ariginal maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash eguivalents. The Organization maintains
3 balance at a bank in excess of the federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any
losses in such accounts and management believes it is not exposed t6 any significant credit risk on cash
deposits and investment holdings. At June 2016 and 2015, cash and cazh equivalents are comprised of
bank accounts with a balance of 52,087,534 and 5319,056; respectively,

Due Fram Government Agencies

Due from government agencies is comprised of amounts due from state and due from pass-through grants
froon TEA. Due from state consists of underpayments for the foundation school program made ta the
Schoaol from TEA. Any of the government funding sources may, at their discretion, regquast reimbursemsant
for expenses or return of funds, or both, as a result of any nontompliance with the terms of the grant or
contract. The Organization has never experienced any losses due to nonpayment, none are expected, and
tharefore, an allowance for doubtful accounts has not been established.

Prepaid Iterms
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as

prepaid items, The cost of prepakd items s recorded as an expenss when consumed rather than when
purchased,

Allowance for Dovbtful Accounts

Management reviews accounts receivable (eg., due from) and promises to give on a regulzr basis to
determine if any receivable will potentially be uncollectible. Management uses its judgment, based on
the best avaidable facts and circumstances, and records a specific reserve for vach receivable to reduce
the receivable to the amount that s expected to be collected. Factors such as the third-party
organization’s ability to meet its financial obligations and historncal experience are used to determine the
amount which is likely to be collected. Management includes recelvable balances that are determined to
be uncallectible In its overall allowance for doubtful accounts. After all attempis to collect a recelvable
have failed, the receivable Is written off against the allowance. The allowance far doubtful accounts
totaled 50 as of June 30, 2016 and 2015.
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Great Hearts America — Texas
Motes to the Financial Statements

Capital Assets

Capital azsets, as defined by the Organization, are azcets with individual cost of more than 55,000, Such
assets are recorded at cost if purchased or fair value it donated. Depreciationis calculated on the straight-
line method based on the following estimated useful lives of the respective assets.

Estimated
Acget Classification Liseful Lives
Building and improverments 40 vears
Furniture and equipmant 3-10 years
Computers and software 3-5 vears

Imipairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Organization reviews the carrying value of property and equipment for impairment whenever events
end circemstances indicate the carrying value of an aszet may not be recoverable from the estimated
future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. In cases where undiscounted
expected future cash flows are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is recognized equal to an
amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of assets. The factors considered By
management in performing this azsessment include current operating results, trends and prospects, and
the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition, and other economic factors. The Organization did not
recognize an impalrment kass during the yvears ended June 30, 2016 and 2015,

Lond Held for Sale
Land held for sale represents land purchased by the Organization that it is actively pursulng a busyer for as
of lune 30, 2016 and 2015. The land was sold on July 19, 2014 (see Nole 1B}

Lease Deposits
The Organization paid deposits for the lease of building space. The amounts will be refunded or expensed
at the end of the lease term.

Logn fesugnee Corts
Loan Esuance costs are amartized over the term of the respective financing agresments.

Revenue Recognition

Capitation received, including base capitation, entitlements, and special services, is recognized in the
pericd services are provided. Revenues from TEA are earned based on reportad attendance. Public and
private grants received are recognized in the period received and when the terms of the grant are met.

Local Support Revenue

Contributbons from donars are recorded at fale value when the Organization & n possession of or recebes
an unconditional promise to give. Contributbons are recorded s unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or
permanently restricted support based on the existence and/cr nature of any donor restrictions, Support
that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in tempaorarily restricted net assets in the
reporting period in which the support s recognized, When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a
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Great Hearts America — Texas
MNotes to the Financial Statements

stipulated time restriction passes or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricked net assets
are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of activities as net assets
released from restrictions.

Unconditional promises to give, Including contributions and pledges that are expected to be collected
within one yvear, are recorded at thelr net realizable value, Unconditicnal promises to give that are
expected to be collected in future years are recorded at the present value of estimated future cash flows
based on the fair valus option.

Conditional promises to give are not included as revenues in the financial statements until such time as
the conditions are met.

Donated services are recognized only if the services received either create or enhance assets or require
speckalized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation, Mo material amount of donated services was received during the
years ended June 20, 2016 and 2015,

In-kind contributions of goods and services are recorded at fair market valus and recopgnized as revenus
in the accounting period in which they are raceived. Mo in-kind contributions were received during the
vears ended June 30, 2016 and 2015,

State and Federal Program Revenues

The Grganization considers all government grants and contracts as exchange transactions rather than
contributions. The Organization recognizes revenue from fee-for-service transactions as services are
rendered and, for grants, as eligible expenditures are incurred, Advances from government agencies are
recordad as deferrad revence. Eligible expanditures incurred in excess of grant fund relmbursements are
recorded as due from pass-through grants from TEA.

Deferred Revenue

Amaunts received for conditional promises to give for which the condition has naot been met are recaorded
a5 deferred revenue, When the condition is met, the revenue will be recognized.

Federol fncome Tox

The Organization s a not-for-profit organization and 5 exempt from federal Income faxes under
Section 201{c)i3) of the internal Revenue Code, except 1o the extent it has unrelated business activities,
&5 such, no provision for federal income taxes has been made in the accompanying financial statements.

The Organization's palicy is to record interest and penalty expense related to income taxes as interest and
other supense, respectively, At June 30, 2016and 2015, no interest or penalties have been or are required
ta be accrued.

Functiono! Allocotion of Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and activities have been summarized on a functional basis In the
staternents of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and
supporting services benefited,
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Great Hearts America — Texas
Motes to the Financial Statements

Related Party Transoctions

Curing the audit period, the Crganization received denated administrative services from GreatHearts —
Arizong ["GHA-AZY), a fiscal sponsor of Great Hearts America. The amount of services received Is minkmal
and, therefore, is not reflected in the financial statements. GHA-AZ is an Arizona not-for-profit 500(c)(3)
corporation that manages a natwork of 22X academically rigorous classical liberal arts academies (semving
grades K-12) in the Phoenix, Arizona metropolitan area. The Organization and GHA-AZ are considered
affiliates as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, since the Board of the Organization is comprised of key
management personnel of GHA-AZ and Great Hearts America. The amount due to related parties at
June 30, 2016 totaled S1B0,055 [5102,742 in 2015). These transactions represent expenditures incurred
by GH&-AZ and Great Hearts America on Behalf of Great Hearts Texas.

Contingencies

Certain conditions may exist as of the date the financial statements are issued, which may result in a loss
to the Organkzation, but whichwill anly be resobred when one or maore future events occur or fall to oocur,
The Organization's management assesses such contingent labilities, and such assessment inherently
involves an exercise of judgment. In assessing loss contingencies related to legal proceedings that are
pending against the Organization or unasserted claims that may result im such proceedings, the
Drganization’s legal counsel evaluates the perceived mearits of any legal proceedings or unasserted claims,
as well s the perceived merits of the amount of relief sought or expected ta be sought therain,

If the assessment of & contingency indicates it & probable thet @ material loss has been incurred and the
amount of the lability can be estimated, then the estimeted lishility would be accrued in the
Crganization’s financial statements. Ifthe assessment indicates a potentially material loss contingency is
not probable; but is reasonably possible, or is probable, but cannot be estimated, then the nature of the
contimgent liability, together with an estimate of the range of possible loss, if determinable and material,
wiould be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. Los: contingencies considered remate ars
generally not disclosed unless they invalve guarantees, in which case the guarantees would be disclosed
in the notes to financial statements,

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Leases—In February 2016, FASE issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU%) No, 2016-02, Leases, which
sats put the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of leases for both
parties to a contract (e, lessess and lessors). The new standard requires lescees to apply & dual
approach, classifying leases as either finance or operating leases based on the princdiple of whether or not
the lease is effectively a financed purchase by the lessee. This classification will determine whether lease
expense is recognized based on an effective interest method or on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease, respectively. A lessee i3 also required to record a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all
leases with & term of greater than 12 months, regardless of their classification. Leases with a term of
12 months or less will be accounted for similar to existing puidance for aperating leases today, The new
standard reguires lessors to account for leases using an approach that s substantially egurcalent to
exizting guidance for sales-type leases, direct financing leases, and operating leases. The ASU ks expected
toimpact the Orzanization’'s financial statements, as the Organization has certain operating and land lease
arrengements for which it is the bessee. The standard is effective on Fanuary 1, 2020, with early adoption
permitted. The Qrgenization is in the process of eveluating the impact of this new guidance.
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Debt lssuance Costs — In April 2015, FASE issued A5U Mo, 2015-03, interest = Imputation of (nterest:
Sirnpiffeing the Preseatation of Debt lssugrice Costs, The amendments in this ASU require that debt
issuance costs refated to a recognized debt liability be presented inthe balance sheet as a direct deduction
from the carrying amount of that debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. The recognition and
mezasurement guidance for debt isswance costs are aot affected by the amendments in this ASU. The
amendments are effective for financial statements ssued for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2015 and for interim pericds within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, Early adoption of the
amendments is permitted for financial statements that have not been previously sued, Management
does not expect the adoption of this pronouncement to have a materlal Impact on the financial
statements of the Organization,

Revenue — | May 2014, FASE isued ASL Mo, 2014-09, Revenue From Contracts With Customers, requiring
an entity to recognize the amount of revenue to which it expects to be entitled for the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers. The updated standard will replace most existing revenue
recognition guidance in L5 GAAP when 1T becomes effective and permits the use of either a full
retrospective or retrospective with cumulative effect transition method. InAugust 2005, FASE issued A5L
Mo. 2015-14, which defers the effective date of ASU No. 2014-00 one vear, making it effective for annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018, The Organization has not yet selected a transition
methed and i currently evaluating the effects the standard will have on the financial statements.

Subsequent Events
The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through Cctober 15, 2016, the date the financial
statements were available to be issusd [see Nate 16).

Reciossification
Certain reclassifications have baen made inthe prior vear’s financial statements 1o eonform to the current
yaars presentation

Z Fair Value Messurements and Disclosures

The requirements of Folr Volue Meosurements and Disclosures of the Bccounting Standards Codification
{UAECT) apply to gl financial instruments and all nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are
being measured and reported on a fair value basis. Fair value |5 defined as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly transaction batween market participants
al the measurement date. Fair Volue Meosuraments and Dleclosures also establishes a falr walue hilesarchy
that prioritizes the inputs uzed in valuation methodologies into the following threa l2vels:

# Level 1 Inputs = Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities,

*  Level 2 Inputs — Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for similar assets
or liabilities, or ather Inputs that can be corroborated by observable market data for substantially the
full term of the azsets or liabilities.

Page 14


https://Manaieeme.nt
https://fnten.st

Great Hearts America — Texas
Notes to the Financial Statements

= Level 3 Inputs — Uinobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are
significant To the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and labilities include financial
instruments whose value s determined using pricing modals, discounted cash flow methodologies, or
other valuation techniques, as well as instruments for which the determination of fair value requires
significant marzgeament judgment ar estimation.

At June 20, 2016 and 2015, the Organization had no investments,

The Tair value of the Organization’s cash and cash eguivalents, due from government agencies, prepaid
expenses, and deposits approximates the carrying amounts of such instruments due to their short
maturity, The fair value of the debt approdimates the carrying amount because the rate and terms
currently available to the Organization approximate the rate and terms on the existing debt,

3. Due From Government Agencies

Due from government agencies consists of the following:

June 30,
2016 2015
Due from state - settlement of current
year underpayment 5 2,524,768 % 625,595
Due from pass-through grants from TEA:
IDEA B 107,418
Title I, Part A 41,588
Title | 12,938 -
Child Mutrition clustar - 4 282
Taotal due from government agencies 5 2,686,712 5 B29.BT7

4, Promises to Give

On Febwuary 2, 2012, the Organlzation recelved a conditional promise to give of 51,000,000 payable in
annual Installments starting on Janwary 1, 2013 through January 33, 2021, The Organization met the
condition of opening a school in the San Antonio area during fiscal year 2015; thus, revenue discounted
to the present value was recognized during the year ended June 30, 2015, The discount rate used to
calculate the present value of long-term promises to give at June 30, 2016 is 1.63%.

On June 4, 20132, the Organization received a conditional promise to give of 52,000,000 payable in anneal
installments starting on July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2016. The Organization met the condition of
opening a school In the 3an Antonie area during fiscal year 2015, thus, revenue discounted to the present
value was recognized during the vear ended June 30, 2015.

On June 25, 2014, the Organization received an unconditional promise to give of 5500,000 payable in five
100,000 annual installmeants starting an December 31, 2014 through December 31, 2018, The discount
rate used to calculate the present value of long-term promises to give at June 30, 2016 i50.925%.
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On April 30, 2015, the Organization receved a conditional promise to give of 5500,000 payvable between
2015 and 2022, The Organization met the condition by finding a match from another funder during fiscal
vear 2005; thus, revenue discounted to the present value was recognized during the year ended June 30,

2015, The discount rate used to cakulate the present value of long-term promises to ghve at June 30,
2160 2075,

On June 10, 2015, the Organization received an unconditional promise to give of 500,000 payable in
2 installments over 12 months. The contribution ks restricted far use to offset the costs of low-income
students who qualify for Free and Reduced Lunch Program, including out-of-school time eduecation
programs, uniforms, school supplies, and athletic fees in the San Antonic area.

O July 7, 2015, the Organization received an unconditional promise to ghee of 550,000 payable between
2016 and 2018, The discount rate used to caloulate the present value of long-term promises to give at
Jume 30, 2016 & 1.17%. The contribution is restricted,

On June 30, 2016, the Organizatlon recelved an unconditional promise to gve of 21,000,000, The full
amount will be paid in fiscal year 2017; therefore, & discount rate was not applied, The contribastion s
raztrictad.

LUnconditional promises to give consizts of the following:

June 30,
2016 2015
Gross amounts due in:
Dne vear or less % 1,796,452 5 7E3.000D
e b Tiwe years G57. 300 1,883,015
Total unconditional promises to glve 2,763,752 2.BEE,015
Less discounts to nat present valus {122,373) (202,7.20)
Less allowance for daubitful sccounts % )
Met unconditionzl promises to give 5 2,641,379 5 2463745
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E. Property and Equipment

Froperty and equipment consst of the following:

fune 30,
2016 2015

Land ard improvements 5 2,404,878 5 2404878
Building and im provements 8,329,104 3,300
Furniture and eguipment 416,354 43,737
Computers and software 6E.334 £0.530
Construction in progress 550,033 6511480
11,788,703 9,043, 965

Less sccumulated depreciation 308 B95 37 988
Met property and eguipment % 11,459,808 L 5,005,997

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 totaled $270,907 and 528,454,

respectively

B, Conditional Contributions

O beptember 5, 2014, the Organlzation recelved a conditional promise to ghve in the amount of 5212 994,
Fayment was contingent upon the Organization meeting certain criteria specified by the donor. In fiscal
year 2015, the Organization received a payment of $533,13& on this conditional promise to give; however,
zince the condition had not been met, this was recorded in deferred revenue. The condition was satisfied
in August 2015 and the deferred revenue, along with the remaining payment of 5278858 which
was received in fiscal vear 2016, were recognized as revenue. There is no conditional promises to give at
Juna 3, 201&,

7. Daferred Revenues

Deferrad revenues consist of the following:

Jung 30,
201k 2015
Conditional promises to give 5 - % 533,136
Deferred grant revenue 70,000 -
After school program deposits 34,612 74,235
Total deferred revenues & 104,612 s 607371
T Te e nE S i G e
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8, fotes Payable

OnJune 30, 2014, the Organization entered into 2 note agreement and received proceads in the amount
of 41,780,000, The note had an interest rate of 3.75% and was scheduled to mature on October 31, 2014

On June 30, 2014, the Organization entered into a boan commitment agreement to borrow 51,800,000
The note had an interest rate of 6.5% and was scheduled to mature on October 31, 2014, OnJuly 1, 2014,
the lender funded the loan and deposited the loan proceeds inko an escrow account for the Organization
b purchase land.

The 51,780,000 and 1,800,000 nates payables described above were refinanced through the issuance of
the long-term debt instruments described below:

Cn October 28, 2014, the Organization entered into a long-term debt instrument of up to
510,000,000 in principal (“lefferson Bank loan"}. The loan bore an interest rate of 4.8% and was
schedubed to mature on October 27, 2017.

On Cctober 28, 2014, the Organization also entered intd two subordinated notes, each with
principal Immediately outstanding of 51,000,000 and annual interest of 3.75%, The entire unpaid
principal amount of the subordinated notes, together with all accrued unpaid interest, were to be
pavable on October 27, 2017, One of these subordinated notes was not required to be pald back
o the lender effective lune 30, 2016 and s Included In revenue,

The lefferson Bank loan and the other 51,000,000 subordinated note were refinanced through the
issuance of the long-term debt instruments described below:

On June 30, 2016, the Organization entered into a long-term debt instrument of up to 516,768,800
in principal {“Mutual of Omaha loan®), The loan bears an interest rate of 3.98% and is scheduled
to mature on June 29, 2031,

On June 30, 2016, the Organization also entered into a subordinated note of 54,192,200, The
subordinate loan bears an interest rate of 8% and is scheduled to mature on Movember 30, 2021,
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Motes payable consist of the following:

lune 30,

2015

Promissory note peyvabile to Jefferson Bank In the

crigingl maximum amount of 510,000,000,

including interest at 4.80H: due Detober 2007;

collateralized by property 5 .
Subordinate notes payable in the original amount

araunt el 51,000,000 sach, including interest al

1.75%: due Detaber 2017; ealiateralized by peoperty
Debt instrument payable to Matual of Omaba i the

maRimum amount of SIEJEE.HII. mduding interest

at 3.98%; due June 2021; collateralized by property 8,336,717
Subordinate nate paysble in the original amount of

1,152,200, inchuding interest at B.00%; due

Movembsr 2121 collateralized by property 4,192,200

5 12,528,917
Aggpregate maturities required at June 30, 2016 were as follows:

Year ending June 30,
2017
2018
2019
2020
2031
Thereafter

Interest expense totaled $542,120 and 5202, 704 for the vears ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

3. Leases

The Organization leases building space pursuant to noncancellable operating leaze sgresmeants expiring

through 2025,

One of the lease agreements requires the Organization to obtain a letter of cradit that can be used in the
event the Organization cannot pay the required lease payments. On March 2, 2015, a third-party
nonprofit corporation entered into a letter of credit reimbursement agreement for the Organization to
meet this requirement. The amount of the letter of credit was originally 359,680, The outstanding

amount on the letter of credit as of June 30, 2016 is 30,
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Future minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating leases as of June 30, 2016 were as
follows:

Year ending June 30,

2017 5 936023
2018 552,623
2019 1,026,770
2020 712,385
2021 T38,97Y
Thereafter 3,121,148
Future minimum lease payments 5 7487924

Rent expense totaled 51,134,444 for the year ended June 30, 2016 (5419108 in 2015),

id. Commitments and Contingencies

The Organization receives a portion of its funding from federal and state programs that are governed by
various rules and regulations of the grantors. The ultimate determination of amounts received under
these programs is generally based upon allowable costs reported to the povernment. Until such audits
have been completed and final settlement reached, there exists a contingency to refund any amount
fecalved In excess of allowable costs. Management is of the opinion that no material Hability will result
from such audits.

During the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Organization entered Into contracts to perfarm
construction on new schocls. The construction commitment balance and retainage payable totaled
51,153,504 and 7,710, respectively, at Jume 30, 2016, and 51,779,E90 and 5528, 838, respectively, at
Juna 30, 2015,

11. Temporarily Restricted Met Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of assets that are subject to grantor or donor-impased
stiputations that require the passage of time or the occurrence of a specified avent.

Jure 30,
2016 2015
Foundatlon School Program — 5tate of Texas 5 3,125,813 5 357,509
Denar restricted contributions 1487065 Sio0,000
5 4,612 878 5 857,509
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Ket assets are released from donor restriction by ncurring expenses satisfying the purpose or time
restrictions specified by donors as follows:

June 30,
2016 2015
Foundation School Program = State of Texas & 12,127,987 5 3,605,903
Criier state aid 190,585 14
Public Charter School ("PLCS") start-up grant - olg,262
Child Nutrition cluster 331,324 5E, 247
IDEA B chaster 107418 53,125
Title H, Pam & 41,588 5
Title |, Part A 12,938 -
Crther grants B2,934 .
$12874774 543251

12.  Employee Benefit Plan

401 (k) Flan — The Organdzation previously had a 301{k) plan for the benelit of substantially all employees,
The Organization's contributions to the plan were at the discretion of the Board and no contributions
were gver made by the Organization. Effective fuly 1, 2014, the Organization o longer offered the 4010k)
employees’ profit sharing plan since it switched to the Teacher Retirement System of Texas (“TRSY), as
described below.

Pension Plan Obligations

TRS Plan Description — The Organization participates in a cost-sharing multiple employer defined banafit
pension plan that has a special funding situation. The plan is administered by TR5. TRS dafined banefit
pensian plan & established and sdministered in accordance with the Texas Constitution, Article X1,
Lectlon 67 and Texas Government Code, Title 8, Subtitle C. The pension trust fund is a qualified pension
trust under Section 401(a] of the Intermal Revenwe Code, The Texas Legislature establishes benefits and
contribution rates within the guidelimes of the Texas Constitution. The pension's Board of Trustees does
nat have the authority to establish or amend benefit terms. The TRS plan does not include a collective-
bargzining agreement.

All employees of public, state-supported educational institutions in Texas who are employed for one-half
of mare of the standard work losd and whe are not exempted from membership under Texas Government
Code, Title 8, Section 822.002 are coverad by TRS,

The TRS plan differs from single employer plans in the following ways:

1. Charters are legally separate entities from the state and each other,

2. Assets contributed by one charter or independent school district ("1507) may be used for the benefit

of an employee of ancther charter or 150,
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3. The unfunded cbligations get paszed along to other charters or 1S0s.
4, There is not a withdrawal penalty for leaving the TRS system.

Pension Plan Fiduciory Net Position
AL August 31, 2015, TRS total plan assets were 5149.780,061 E24; accumulated benefit obhligation was
5163887 375,172; and the plan was 73.43% unfunded,

Detailed Infarmation about TRE' fiduciary net position is available in a separately lszued Comprahansive
Annual Financial Report ["CAFR"} that Includes financizl statements and required supplementary
information. That report may be obtained on the Internet at https/www trs state tyus)
about/documents/cafr.pdfFCAFR; by writing to TRS at 1000 Red River Street, fustin, Te, 7E701-2698; or
by calling {512} 542-6592,

Contributions

Contribution reguirermnents are established or amended pursuant to Article 16, Section 67 of the Texs
Constitution, which reguires the Texas leglsiature to establish a member contribution rate of not less than
6% of the member's annual compensation and a state contribution rate of not less than &% and not more
than 10% of the aggregate annual compensation paid 1o members of TRS during the fiscal year. Texas
Govermnment Code, Section 821 006 prohibdts benefit improvements, i as a result of the particular action,
the time required to amortize TRS' unfunded actuarial liabilities would be increased to a pericd that
exceeds 31 years, or, if the amortization pericd already excesds 31 years, the period would be increased
by such action.

Employee contribution rates are set in state statute, Texas Government Code, Section 825.402, Senate
Bill 1458 of the B3rd Texas Legislature amended Texas Government Code, Section 825.402 for member
contributions and established employes contribution rates for fecal years 2014 through 2017, 1t also
added a 1.5% contribution for employers not paying Old Age Survivor and Disabdity Insurance {"DASDN")
on certain employees effective for fiscal year 2015 as discussed In Note 1 of the TRS 2014 CAFR, The 83rd
Texas Legislature, General Appropriations Act ("GA&AY) established the emplover contribution rates for
fiscal years 2004 and 2015. The 84th Texas Legislature, GAA established the employer contribution rates
for fiscal years 2016 and 2017

Contributors to the plan incdude members, the Organization, and the state of Texas as the only
nonemployer contributing entity {"NECE"), The state is the emplover for senior colleges, medical schoals,
and state agencies, including TRA. In each respective role, the state contributes to the plan inaccordance
with state statutes and the GAR,
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As the NECE for public education and Junior colleges, the state of Texas contributes to TRS an amount
equal to the current employer contribution rate times the aggregete annuel compenzation of all
participating members of the pension trust fund during that fiscal yvear reduced by the amaounts described
below which are paid by the Crganization. The Organization is required to pay the employer contribution
rate in the following instances:

= Dnthe portion of the member's salary that exceeds the statutory minimum for members entitled to
the statutory minimum wunder Section 21,402 of the Texas Education Code [“TECT).

= [uring a new member's first 90 days of employment.

s \When any part orall of an employee's salary i paid by federal funding sources, a privately sponsored
source, from noneducational and general, or lacal funds,

* ‘When the employing district is a public junior college or junlor college district, the district shall
cantribute to TRS an amount equal to 50% of the state contribution rate for certaln instructicnal or
administrative employees; and 100% of the state contribution rate for all other employees.

In addition to the Organization employer contributions lsted below, when emplaying a retiree of TRE, the
Organization shall pay both the member contribution and the state contribution as an employment after
retiremant surcharge, The Organization’s contribution to TRS does not represent more than 5% of the
total contributions to the TRS plan. There have been no changes that would affect the comparison of
employer contributions from year to year,

2016 2015
Member (emplovees) T.2% B.7%
MELE &.E% 6.B%
Employers B.E% 6 E%H
Employer contributicns % 112590 L 51,959
Member contributions % 568,394 L 182918
Mon-CA5DI contributions 5 119,618 L 39,126

13.  Health Insurance

During the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, employees of the Organization were covered by a health
Insurance plan, The Crganization contributed 5316-5893 per employes, per month (S2E3.-5857 par
employes, per manth for 2015] depending on the emplovees” health insurance plan rate. Employees, at
their option, authorized payroll withholdings to pay confributions or premiums for dependents, All
premiums were paid to licensed insurers.
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14, Economic Dependency

Curing the vear ended June 30, 2016, the Organization received approximately 60% of its contributions
from three revenue sources (87% from three revenue sources in 2015), With schools operational, the
Drganization earns the majority of its funding from various federal, state, and local entities. Changes in
state funding levels for charter schools in Texas could have a significant impact on the Organization's
Future revenues.

15,  State Compliance Matters

Budgetary Matters

In accordance with the TEA Special Supplement to the Financial Accountability System Resource Guide
Charter Schools, if the orginal and final budgeted amounts vary by more than 10% of the original
budgeted amounts, 3 written statement discussing the causes of the varances ks reguired.

The Board approved one budget amendment in June 2016, This amendment was necessary to maore
accurately refiect the budget and actual expense transactions in accondance with the Texas requirements.

The final budgeted amounts varied by more than 10% of the original budgeted amounts a5 follows:

= Sfate program revenue increased by 52,319,513 as a result of higher than anticipated Average Daily
Attendance and per student alletment; greater than anticipated allotments for Spedial Education,
Compensatory Education, Bilingual and New Instructional Facility funding, and Tier Il funding.

=  Federal program revenue increased by 555,380 as the result of a decrease in the Mational Schoaol
Lunch Program because of lower participation and an increase from being awarded additional funds
for IDEA B, Title | Part A, and Titla |11 Part A,

= Function 13 = decrease of 5128.263 due to outside professicnal development being limited due 1o
cash flow limitations.

» Function 21 = decrease of 5411,980 for reclassification of personnel expenses,
s Functlon 23 - Increase of 5382,893 for reclassification of personnel cost,

= Function 36—increase of 583,100 for personnel cost and related benefits of the athletlc coach position
ariginally included in Function 11, instructional budget.

# Function 41 = decrease of $896,000 due o reclassification of budgeted expenie related to software
and copler lease to Function 53 = data processing services, decrease of personnel cost for positions
which were vacated and remained unfilled for periods throughout the yvear and limitations on travel
during the first two quarters of the year due to cash flow lmitations,
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* Function 51 =increased 5376,753 due to several categories of expense occurring during the year that
were not planned for during the budget cycle = decision to hire two intemal maintenance
professionals during the year, additional suppfies for maintenance and repair at the Irving and
Morthern Oaks campuses, recordation of Irving lease on a straight-line basis, increase in maintenance
and repair services and travel expenses of facilities management.

# Function 53 = increased 582,000 due to software and copier lease expenses originally budgeted to
Function 41, general administration, moved to this function.

*  Function 71 —increased 5396820 due to additional Interest payment made due to debt refinancing,
weite-off of bond amortization related to refinanced debt, and unbudgeted interest payments on
subordinate debt,

In accordance with the TEA Specal Supplement to the Financial Accountability System Resowrce Guide
Charter Schools, variances between the final budgeted amounts and the actual amounts that exceed 10%
of the final budget amount also require a written statement discussing the cause of the variance.

The actual expenses did not vary by more than 10% from the final amended budget.
16.  Subsequent Events

Im May of 2016, the Crganization entered Into a sale agreement for 1.6% undeveloped acres of the
17 acres of the Great Hearts Academy = Morthemn Oaks campus for a total price of $ 375,000, At the time
of the tale agreement, the entire sale amount was placed into escrow and, on May 11, 2016, 5100,000
was released to the Organization to be held as earnest money. The sale was completed on July 13, 2015
at which time the remaining amount due less charges and legal fees was deposited into the Organization's
operating account. The total remaining amount received at the time of closing was 245,000
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Schedules of Expenses
Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

Expensas

6100
6200
B300
G400
8500

Payroll costs

Prafesslenal and contracted services
supplies and materials

Other operaling costs

Debt service costs

Tatal expenses
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2016

5 05,589,520
3,132,525
2,187,683

737,191

226,974

% 16,573,893

2015

5 3,450,563
1,194,703
1,063,376

375,229
326,684

5 5,610,555
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Schedule of Capital Assets
June 30, 2016

Asset Classification

Property and Equipment

1510 Land and improvements
1520 Bullding and improvemnents
1530 Furniture and equipment
1532 Cormputers and software
1580 Construction in progress

Crwmnership Interest

Local
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5 2,404,878 5
8,329,104
415,354 A
56,078 12,256
550,033 .

% 11,756,447 & 12,256




Great Hearts America — Texas

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Year Ended Junz 30, 2016

Revenues and Other Support

5700 Local suppart
5800 Srate program fevereses
5900 Federal program redenues

1
i3

P |
23
|

33
35
36
41
51
53
a1
Tl

Total revenues and cther support

Expenscs

Instructional

Curriculum developmant and
instructional s@&ff development

Instmuctional leadership

School leadership

Guidance, counsellng, and evalsation
sandices

Health sarvices

Food sersices

Extracurricular activities

General administration

Plant rmai ntenance and operationsg

Data procesiing sefvices

Communily sarvices

Dbt cervice

Fundraising

Total espenses
Change in net assets
Hat assets at baginming of vear

Hat assats at ond of year

Variancs

‘With Final

Budgatad Amounts Budpget

Poslilve
Driginal Final Actual [Negative}
5 5321113 % 5173676 5 4997413 % [175,.263]
13,084,793 15,404,306 15,086,876 {317,.430)
23E,960 234,340 285,211 Erl
18,534,866 20,862,327 20,369,500 (432 §23)
BG74,163 8,634,852 8285584 M5 260
141,925 13,662 14,240 (578

A11,950 - - -
80,777 1163474 1,146,424 17248
58,170 54,925 50,780 4,165
180,772 LB 774 I65 548 15,126
360,948 350,943 414,000 (23,062}
189,403 272,503 280,645 (8,143}
2,745,161 2,043,161 1,579,141 70,020
2 080,697 2,457 450 1337 588 219 4R
177,220 253220 179 580 (20,3E0}
274,655 275,100 258 851 16,230
453,180 E&,000 E76,975 73,025
548,134 573,537 B34.033 [54,455)
17,077,229 17,181,808 16,573,893 BO7,915
1,557,637 3,680,514 3,795,607 115,093

1,538,193 2,038,198 2,538,298
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Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed

in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Tothe Board of Directors
Great Hearts Amernica — Texas
San Antonio, Texas

We have audited, in aocordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of america and the standards applicabde to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stondords
lssued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Great Hearts
America — Texas [the "Organization”) which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2016, the related statements of activities and cash flows for the vear then ended, and the related notes
to financlal statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 25, 2016,

Internal Cantrof Owver Finonciol Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Organization's
internal control over financial reporting (internal controd) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the dreumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinior: on the financial statements,
But not for the purpose of expressing an opinian on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal
contral. Accordingly, we do not express an opinior on the effectiveness of Organization’s internal controd,

A deficiency in Intermal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
managemeant or employeas, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness k a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the Organization's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely
basis. & significant deficiency Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intermal control that is
lexs severs than a material weakness, yat important enough to mersit attention by those charged with
EOVETMAnCe.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described In the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal contrel that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify cartain
deficiencies in internal contral described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
as items 2016-002 and 2016-003 that we consider 1o be significant deficiencies.
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Complionee and Other Matters

Az part of obtaining reasonable azsurance about whether the Organization’s financial statements ara free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncom pliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts, However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion, The results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other matters that is
required to be reported under Government Auditing Stondords and described in the accompany Schedule
of Findings and Cuestioned Costs as (tem 2006-001,

The Organization’s Responses to the Findings

The Crganization's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs and Corrective Action Plan. The Organization's responses were
net subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the finandial statements and, accordingly,
WE ERpress ne opinion on them.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report ks solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinlon an the effectiveness of the Organlzation’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in acoordance with
Govermment Auditing Stonderds in considering the Organization’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Yadaptt | Sthokemmamn = to. | L.LP.

San Antonio, Texas
Cctober 25, 2016
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Great Hearts America — Texas

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 20146

I = Summary of Auditor's Results
Elnancial Statements
Type of auditor’s report jssued: Unmredified

Internal contral ower fnanclal reporting:

Material weaknesses) identified? Yeg X HNo
Sigmificant deficiencyiies) identilied that are not
conzsidered 1o be material weaknoss|es)? X Yeou Mone Reparted
Moncompliance matarial to financial statements noted ? Yes X Ko

Il = Financial Statement Finding

Finding 2016-001: Procurement
Type of Finding: Compliance

Criterfo: The TEA Special Supplement to the Financial Accountability System Resource Guide Charter
School Update 5.0 requires purchases be made using 8 process that provides the best value for the charter
school in accordance with TEC 44.031-44.901.

Congition: The Organization currently is utilizing a vendor to purchase textbooks that was not properly
procured in the prior year yet the Organization continued to use the vendor in the current year.

Context: The vendor was not properly procured in the prior vear and the Organization did not
subsequently go through the procurement process in the current year to resolve the compliance
exception.

Couse ond Effect: Fiscal year 2015 was the Qrganization’s first year of Texas charter school operations
and, as a result, the Organization did not have current policies to address competitive procurement. In
fiscal year 2016, the procuremeant policies wers developed and implemented for new vendors, however,
the Organization did not ensure vendors it continued to use from the prior vear were procured in
accordance with the criteria described above or the newly implemented policies.

Recommendation; We recommend the Crganization perferm the preper procurement procedures to
ensure com pliance with the criterla described above.

Wiews of Responsible Officlals: See Corrective Actlon Plan.
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Great Hearts America — Texas

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs — Continued
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Finding 2016-002: Temporarily Restricted Met Assets
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency

Criterio:  Contributions received with donor-imposed restrictions are required to Be recorded as
temporarily restricted net assels and once the restriction has been met, those amounts are released from
restrictions and reclassified to unrestricted net asset,

Condifion: In fiscal year 2016, the Organization did not have a fermal process in place to accurately track
the expenses of the restricted contributions being released from restriction,

fonfext: We noted several instances where the release from restriction was not property identified.

Couse and Effect: Dueto lack of & formal process in this area, no amount of release from restrictions could
be inaccurately presented,

Recommendation: We recormmend the Crganization implement formal goficies and procedures to track
the temporarily restricted contributions to ensure the amounts are properly classified as released from
restrictions when the donor restrictions have been met.

Views of Responsible Officlals: See Corrective Action Plan,

Finding 2016-003: Segregation of Duties
Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency

Criterio; Segregation of duties is a key financial reporting concept that ensures adequate oversight and
raview exists to reduce the risk of error and fraud in the financial statements.

Conagltion: A small number of people have the primary responsibility for performing most of the
accounting and financial reporting duties. As a result, some gspects of Internal controls that rely upon
sdequate segregation of duties are missing.

Context: During the year, the Organization experienced turnover in the accounting/finance department.

Couse and Effect: Segregation of duties can help reduce the risk of error and fraud; however, thesa
controk were missing due to the recent turmover in the accounting/finance department.

fecommendation; We recommend the Organlzation consider additienal atternathve procedures to the
current internal control systern and evaluate possibilities to strengthen the system, particularly as the

Crganization continues to grow.

Views of Respongible Officials: See Corrective Action Plan,
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Great Hearts America — Texas

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Finding 2015-001; Construction Payables

Fricr ¥Year Finding: AL June 30, 2015, the Organization did not record the retainage payable of
approximately $529,000 and did not record the June construction invoices of approximately S818,000.

Etatus: This finding has baen cormected in the curment year

Finding 2015-002: Local Procurement Policies and Procedures

Fricr Yegr fnding: The Organization’s current policies do not address competitive procurement.
Stofus: This finding has been corrected in the current year,

Finding 2015-003; Procurement and Suspension and Debarment
Federal Program: 2013-2014 PCS Start-Up Grants

Frior Year Finding: The Organization did mot fully follow the procurement guidelines and alzo did not
check for suspension and debarmeant for three vendors pald 5522,674 with the PCS start-up grant funds.
Howewver, the vendors used wera not suspended or debarrad.

Status: The Organiration did not receive this grant im the current year. Current year procuremsnt testing
disclosed issues which are included in finding 2016-001. No transactions occurred in the current vear that
required the Organization to perform the suspension and debarment verification. Our inquiry of
management indicated policies and procedures have been updated to include the suspension and
debarmant verification on future transactions,

Finding 2015-004: Cash Management and Financlal Reporting
Federal Program: 2013-2014 PCS Start-Up Grants

Priar Yeor Findimg: The Crganization requested advance funds from TEA and did not make the
disbursement of funds within three days.

Ltotus: The Organization did not recelve this grant In the current vear, Due to current year turnover in

the accounting/finance departmeant, drawdown requests in general for federal grants of the Organization
wieere not timely submitted.
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Great Hearts America — Texas

Corrective Action Plan
Year Ended June 20, 2016

Finding 2016-001; Procurement

Views of Responsible Officials ond Planned Corrective Action: Management agrees with the finding,
Luring the year, the Organization developed new procurement procedures and implemented those for
vendors which weare new during the 2015-2016 fiscal year. The procedures will be adhered to for all
vendors, as required, if not previously vetted through the process.

Responsible Person: Deborah Zimmerman
Implermentotion Date! Immediately
Finding 2016-D02: Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Views af Responsibie Officials and Planned Corveciive Action, Management agrees with the finding, The
Organization has implemented a process by which a "project” code i used to identify the amounts
released from restriction, The procedures manual will be updated to reflect this procedural change,

fResponsible Persor: Deborah Zimmearman
implermentation Dote: Immediately
Finding 2016-003: Segregation of Duties

Views of Responsible Officialz and Plamsed Correchive Action: Management agrees with the finding.
During fiscal yvear 2015-2016, the Organization experienced turnover in the finance area, During much of
the year, tamparary help was utilized to continue the routine processing.  In Apdl 2006, a full-time
permanant dccounts Payable/Payroll pesition was filled; in May of 2006, a S2nior Acoountant was hired:
and in August 2016, a full-time Human Resources Manager was hired, There ks still one remaining position
budgeted for the Finance/Human Rescurces team, which is budgeted for and needs to be filled. With all
pasitions filled, the VP of Finance and Administration will be enabled to perform maore oversight of the
activities, instead of performing the actual activities; thus, providing for @ more sound system of internal
contral and better segregation af duties,

Recponcible Person; Deborah Zimmerman

Implementation Date: Final hire to be made by December 31, 20156
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	Great Hearts America -Texas Statements ofFinancial Position Exhibit A-1 
	June 30, 2016 and 2015 
	Cun ent Assets Cash aAd cash equ)\raJenu 
	Due from government agencies 
	Prep.aid expenses 
	Unconditional promises to give -current portion 
	Oth(?r «Jl'ICnt assets 
	Total cvnent a.ssets 
	Nonwrrent Assets Property and equipment -net land held for sale lease deposits loon isswnce cos-ts -net of amortization of $0 
	lSSZ,359 ;n 2015) Unoon<lillona1 oromi:ies to 3ive -Mt 
	Tot.al noncurrent assets 
	Total assets 
	Current liabilities Acco\lnts payable and other liabilities 
	ove to relJted pattv 
	A..etalnage payoble 
	Accrued expenses Deferred revenue 
	Total current liabilities 
	L.ona~Term Ll;,blntles-notes paya,b!,e 
	Total llabUlties 
	Net Assets Unrestricted Ternpo~rilv ,cnrleted 
	Total net assets 
	Total llabllities and net assets 
	2016 
	2016 
	2016 
	2015 

	$ 
	$ 
	2,087, 584 
	$ 
	3i9,0S6 

	TR
	2,686, 712 
	629,877 

	TR
	319,264 
	29,508 

	TR
	1,796,452 
	783,000 

	TR
	5, 894 
	45,111 

	TR
	6,895,906 
	1,806,552 

	TR
	11,459,808 
	9,005,99? 

	TR
	267,878 
	267,878 

	TR
	140,640 
	140,640 

	TR
	489, 493 
	284,854 

	TR
	844,927 
	1;680, 295 

	TR
	13, 202,746 
	l l,379,664 

	$ 20,098, 652 
	$ 20,098, 652 
	$ U,186,2J6 

	$ 3821837 
	$ 3821837 
	$ 1,084,065 

	180,0SS 
	180,0SS 
	102, 742 

	7, 710 
	7, 710 
	528,988 

	560,616 
	560,616 
	44,530 

	104,612 
	104,612 
	607,371 

	1, 235,830 
	1, 235,830 
	2,367,696 

	12,528,917 
	12,528,917 
	8,280.222 

	13,764,747 
	13,764,747 
	10,647,918 

	1.72.1,027 
	1.72.1,027 
	1,680,789 

	4,612, 878 
	4,612, 878 
	8571509 

	6,333,905 
	6,333,905 
	2,538,298 

	$ 20,098,652 
	$ 20,098,652 
	$ J3.186,V6 


	Notes to ihe finandol statements form on integral port ofthese statements. Page4 
	Great Hearts America 
	Great Hearts America 
	Great Hearts America 
	-

	Texas 

	Statement of Activities 
	Statement of Activities 

	Exhibit A·2 
	Exhibit A·2 

	Yt!af Ended June 30, 2016 
	Yt!af Ended June 30, 2016 

	unreml«ed 
	unreml«ed 
	Tempotllril'( Aes:1r1c1ed 
	Tout 

	Revenui:,; ;ind Ot her $1,1ppo rt L.oQ1 $Upport; Contribvtlons Food sefVl(e Other revenue 
	Revenui:,; ;ind Ot her $1,1ppo rt L.oQ1 $Upport; Contribvtlons Food sefVl(e Other revenue 
	$ 2,812,576 926,781 
	$ L.050,000 108,<)S& 
	s 3M2,S76 2:08,05' 916,181 

	Total local suppon 
	Total local suppon 
	3,739,3S7 
	t,a258,0S6 
	4,997,413 

	Stal e pn:.grflm U~\·enues: fo11ndc1ti00 SchOOI P,os:ram State of n.os Other-,;talc ~!d 
	Stal e pn:.grflm U~\·enues: fo11ndc1ti00 SchOOI P,os:ram State of n.os Other-,;talc ~!d 
	-

	14,796,8'91 289,9BS 
	14,796,891 289,985 

	Tot;,I slit~ pn:igr.im riwunuas
	Tot;,I slit~ pn:igr.im riwunuas
	-

	LS,086,876 
	l.S,086,876 

	F~dcrat program fe'\'fflUes: lltk! I IDEA 8 cluster title II, P<lrt A Child Nuttltlon clustet 
	F~dcrat program fe'\'fflUes: lltk! I IDEA 8 cluster title II, P<lrt A Child Nuttltlon clustet 
	ll,938 107,418 4 1,588 12.3,267 
	12,'38 107,418 l11,S88 123,267 

	Total fedetal program re\·enues 
	Total fedetal program re\·enues 
	285,2U 
	285, 211 

	Ne:t asseu re!e-ased from re!t11Ctioo! 1~.1trictiOn$ Htisfied by p<Jymmn 
	Ne:t asseu re!e-ased from re!t11Ctioo! 1~.1trictiOn$ Htisfied by p<Jymmn 
	-

	11,874,774 
	(12,874,,774) 

	Tot.ii rQ'.,>qnl)Q; and othfilr support 
	Tot.ii rQ'.,>qnl)Q; and othfilr support 
	1.G,614,l.31 
	3,755,369 
	20,369,500 

	Expenses 11 tr.structional 13 Curriculum development and !nstructlonal staff development 13 School !eJd,mhlp 31 Guidance, counseling. and eva!uadon services 33 Heehh services 35 Food Stl'\IICtS 36 tlltracur-ticul.lir acti\'itiM 41 Gene,3115dminlt'tr.ltion 51 ?IMt m~intenAnoeand 0'1e1:ition$ 53 Oa1:1 proce~ns i:~rvtot~ 61 CommunityRtVit;C'.$ 71 Debi ser~-e. 81 Fundr.iit;ing 
	Expenses 11 tr.structional 13 Curriculum development and !nstructlonal staff development 13 School !eJd,mhlp 31 Guidance, counseling. and eva!uadon services 33 Heehh services 35 Food Stl'\IICtS 36 tlltracur-ticul.lir acti\'itiM 41 Gene,3115dminlt'tr.ltion 51 ?IMt m~intenAnoeand 0'1e1:ition$ 53 Oa1:1 proce~ns i:~rvtot~ 61 CommunityRtVit;C'.$ 71 Debi ser~-e. 81 Fundr.iit;ing 
	8,2..85,584 14,240 1,140,.428 50,760 165,648 414.010 2.30,646 1,979,141 2,237,988 2.79,580 ?t;S,a.61 826,97S 63.4,032 
	&,28S,S3'1 14,2.40 1,146,428 50,760 16S,648 414,010 280,646 1,979, 141 2,237,988 279,580 258,861 826,97S 6 34,03,2 

	Tou;lt;~S'8$ 
	Tou;lt;~S'8$ 
	16.,S73,893 
	16,573,&93 

	Ch~"11* in net ~s"IS 
	Ch~"11* in net ~s"IS 
	40,%38 
	3,7SS,369 
	3,795,607 

	!\',etassets at beEinn!ng of vear 
	!\',etassets at beEinn!ng of vear 
	1,680,78' 
	as1.so, 
	2..,538,.l':18 

	~assets .it1:nd of\•ear 
	~assets .it1:nd of\•ear 
	$ 1,721,027 
	$ 4,612,878 
	$ 
	&,333,,0S 


	Notes to the f fnonclol statements /omi on integral part ofthese statements. 
	Pages 
	Great Hearts America -Texas 
	Great Hearts America -Texas 
	Statement of Activities ExhibitA-2 
	Year Ended June 30, 2015 
	Re\lenues and Othet Stl;pport 
	Local support: Cont ributf0t1.s 
	food-set\•ice 
	Otht, 
	rc'l'Cn1.1e 

	TQt.al 10(:;II wpport 
	State pr,oera.m te"Yenue:s: 
	founda-tior, ~ I Prasram-State of Texas 
	Other state aid 
	Total state program re-,renues. 
	FcdCial p1oi;1e.m fC"Yenue:s: PCS !;:!ltrl•up a1ant 10£A8 ~-stcr Ch\ld N'utl'ition cluster 
	Tot.I federal Pl'O&rilm revenues 
	Net assets released from restrlctloos 
	-

	r~tr!cticns satisfied bypayments 
	Total revfenues and othtt support 
	Eicpcoses 
	11 fnSIIUtliMa1 
	Cutrf0Jh1m dt'lclo;unent :ind in$ttuctlon:a! )lllff di:vclopmcr.t 21 lnstruction.;il l~.:idrmhip 23 School lc~ership 31 Guld:mc;,, v01.mli'!lina, .in<f QY;;h>atbn s,ervices 33 Health services 3$ Food 3G Extracurrkutar aalvlttes General administration SI Marn maintenance and operat!om S3 Data processing services 61 commun!tv .wn,Jces 11 Debt81 rundra!slng 
	" 
	Hl'Yi(.eS 
	., 
	sen,i.ce 

	Total expenses 
	Ch~nge in net IISSel.s 
	Net deliCit a, beginnirig of vta1 
	unresttkted 
	3,881,086 
	s 

	isi,186 
	4, UJ,872 
	4,324.251 
	8,458,123 
	2,762.79l 
	~8.99S 29,3S2 584,535 
	6.208 43,139 148,S!14 99,482 1,291,911 663,4~8 149,538 54;955 326,685 400,322 
	6,610,555 
	l ,,847,568 
	(166,779) 
	Temporarnv Restricted 
	Temporarnv Restricted 
	Temporarnv Restricted 
	Toto! 

	s 
	s 
	500,000 28,008 
	$ 
	4,381,086 2-&,008 2S2,786 

	TR
	528,008 
	4,661,880 

	TR
	3,963,412 14 
	3,963,412.. 

	TR
	3,963,426 
	3,963,~26 

	TR
	60S,%2 53,125 28,2.39 
	608,962 53,125 28,239 

	TR
	890,326 
	690,326 

	1, ,324,251! 
	1, ,324,251! 

	8.57,509 
	8.57,509 
	-9,31S,632 

	TR
	2,762,791 

	TR
	48,995 29,3$! S84,S3S 

	TR
	6.208 43,739 148:S94 99,482 1,291,911 663,448 149,538 54,955 326,685 400,322 

	TR
	6,610,SSS 

	857,509" 
	857,509" 
	2,705,0 77 

	TR
	{166,779> 


	Net U$tU at t(ld ofyci,r s 1,680,1S9 s 8S7.S09 s 2,538,298 
	Notes to the finoncia( stotemi?nts form on integral pan of these statements. 
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	Great Hearts America 
	Great Hearts America 
	Great Hearts America 
	-

	Texas 

	Statements of Cash Flows 
	Statements of Cash Flows 

	Exhibit A-3 
	Exhibit A-3 

	Years Ende~ June 30, 2016 and 201S 
	Years Ende~ June 30, 2016 and 201S 

	2016 
	2016 
	201S 

	t.lsh Flows f:rom Operatlnc Aedvltles Change In net assets Adjustmenu to reconcile cMnge in net assets to net cash pro·-Aded tr,• (used In) operalingac1lv!Ues: OepredatiCI\ Amortiiation of loat\ is:.u.an~ coi.t Cha(!Qes in: Due fr«n sovcmment:il ;g,cnci,cs P,~id flxpcnJes l.c;>se dcp~ib u~-oOOltion-111 prom bes to give Othi;,r current a.$$1;1$ Ac;c;ouniS Pil'Y"ble and other liabilities :ind ret.ain;;ae p;;.y:;,bte Oue to relattd paJtY Accrued e.,cpenses Deferred revenue 
	t.lsh Flows f:rom Operatlnc Aedvltles Change In net assets Adjustmenu to reconcile cMnge in net assets to net cash pro·-Aded tr,• (used In) operalingac1lv!Ues: OepredatiCI\ Amortiiation of loat\ is:.u.an~ coi.t Cha(!Qes in: Due fr«n sovcmment:il ;g,cnci,cs P,~id flxpcnJes l.c;>se dcp~ib u~-oOOltion-111 prom bes to give Othi;,r current a.$$1;1$ Ac;c;ouniS Pil'Y"ble and other liabilities :ind ret.ain;;ae p;;.y:;,bte Oue to relattd paJtY Accrued e.,cpenses Deferred revenue 
	$ 3,795,607 270,907 284,8S4 (2,05G,83S) (289,?Sfi) {178,084) 39,217 ll,U2.S06) 77.JU 516,086 iso2,1s9l 
	$ 
	2,705,077 28,ASt 123,975 1553,9'2) 252,664 179,840) 12,003,258) 138,498) 205,074 LOZ,7"12 "14,S.30 1'76,629! 

	Net ca'.>h p;<ovlded by (us.ed lnl operating ac(h.!tles 
	Net ca'.>h p;<ovlded by (us.ed lnl operating ac(h.!tles 
	734,044 
	l1S9,651) 

	Cash lllows From Investing Actlvltt.es Purchase ofproperty and equlpment Pur(hase ofl.iind held fot sa5e 
	Cash lllows From Investing Actlvltt.es Purchase ofproperty and equlpment Pur(hase ofl.iind held fot sa5e 
	(2,724,718) 
	P ,506,691) fl67,878) 

	NM (3th used rn lnvenlng:activ!tie1; 
	NM (3th used rn lnvenlng:activ!tie1; 
	(2,724,718) 
	p,nA,S69) 

	C~h Flows From Finandt-,t: Act ivit icc Payments on b:tn~ i,mf notes Pl.lYl.l b-k: Pro~td$ from f()#ni ;md note$ p;ay:ib(~ loan issu;,nceoosts 
	C~h Flows From Finandt-,t: Act ivit icc Payments on b:tn~ i,mf notes Pl.lYl.l b-k: Pro~td$ from f()#ni ;md note$ p;ay:ib(~ loan issu;,nceoosts 
	4,248,695 {489,493) 
	U.780,000) 8,280,122 !408,829) 

	Net c;ash pro..;dtd by fin.in~ing .1c.tiviut$ 
	Net c;ash pro..;dtd by fin.in~ing .1c.tiviut$ 
	37S9202 11
	61091,393 

	Net inc re.~ ld'~q~se) in ~•sh and c.asl\ equival~na 
	Net inc re.~ ld'~q~se) in ~•sh and c.asl\ equival~na 
	1,768,528 
	(1.872,827) 

	~hand casn equivu!er,ts at be-i!nnlne ofyear 
	~hand casn equivu!er,ts at be-i!nnlne ofyear 
	319~056 
	21t,td!!!;3 

	C.nh and cash~QuivaJentsal e1l<f ofvear 
	C.nh and cash~QuivaJentsal e1l<f ofvear 
	s 
	2:t08'1,S84 
	s 
	319,0S6 

	Supplcmcnt:iil Di$dosur~s of Ca$h Flow lnform,1tion C.h ~ id fQr irtt~it 
	Supplcmcnt:iil Di$dosur~s of Ca$h Flow lnform,1tion C.h ~ id fQr irtt~it 
	s 
	617 748 
	s 
	202,109 

	Ptocee:1!$ trorn to:in di:positf!d in t!!Dow 
	Ptocee:1!$ trorn to:in di:positf!d in t!!Dow 
	s 
	s 
	1,soo,000 

	toans paid offrhrougtl retina nee 
	toans paid offrhrougtl retina nee 
	s 11,944,930 
	s 


	Nores to the financial statements form on integral port of these s-rotements. 
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	Great Hearts America -Texas 
	Notes to the Financial Statements 
	Organization and Significant Accounting Policies 
	Rtporting Entity, Oporations, ondNature ofActivities 
	Grt3il HcartS AmCricf-TcxM !tho "Org.inlution"} is -" not~for•proflt 5011c)(3) corporation established In the statt of Tt.x.as 10 operate pubne charter «hools with open admissions p<>Hctes in Tex.as. "Tht Otganizauon wu originally ~sta.blished in 2002 fOf' the pu,post of prO\'kting educ;.1.ion under the name or 
	Stste, Creek Center for Libera!Al'l$. A Restated CertlOcMe of Formation whh New Amcndme,as was Oted on Febrvary 17, 2011 to ctianse the OrganiiaUon's ncime to Great Hearts Amerkti -Tt.x.as and amend Its 
	purpose to develop each student's academic potential, character, end leadership quilhle$ through an academically rigorous and content•rich educational program grounded in the da$sk:al liberal amtraditioo and tostrive to gjve every student the education he or she deserves and needs. The primary goal of the Organization is to graduate thoughtful leaders or character who wilJ contribute to a more philosophical. humane, al'\C:I just society. No assets were transferred in the re1ormation process. 
	per$on.al 

	The Oreanit&lion ls the chatter holde-rfor all Grtat Hearts academies operated in Texas. The Organization has a sole corpotatt m-ember, Gre~t Hearts America, an Ari1ona not, for•profit 501(c)(3) corporation, as pe,mitted by the Ttxas 8us1Mss o,,anitatlons Code. This nonprofit corporate structure is Intended to maintain the lntes,1tvof the Mtionol Great HelSl'tS academk:ond proa,~mmat!cmodeL while t'll.so allowins ro, local Input and control. 
	Pursuant to the bylaws of the Organlu!tKln, the Board of Directors (the "Board"} will be comprised of not less than three and not more than, seven members. Each d)rector will serve a one-year tern, or unttl his or her successor is appointed, and a director wflos.e term has expired may be appointed to succeed him or hersetf. The Board is responsibli! for the adoption and implementation of policy for the Organization ;ind for the moMgcmtnt, operation, and atcountab1lity of the ch<1rtcrsdlool in .ill locations
	In November 2012, the Texas Slaie Board of Educ;atlon ("il;A") ilpproved the Organl:catlon·, first ch~rte, au1horlzlng the ope,ning of at least two K-l2 campuses In and around San Antonio, Texas.. According to the terms of the chaner, ,he charter shall be In effect from the date of eiteartion through July 31, 2018, unless renewed or terminated. The charter may be renewed for an additional period of ten years. The Organitation opancd Great Hearts Acadamy -Monte Vista (North and South campuses) on August 18, 
	In June 2014, the TEA al$0 approved iR eicpanslon aimendment to the ct1i111er, atrowll\8 the o,g3n11a1lon to open up to two ;,ddltlona.l campu$-ei ~Great Hearts Academy -Dallas and Gteat Hearts AC41demy lrvlng) to ser,e famUles In those addlOonal geographic. territories effective July 1, 201$. The l?A also approved an amendment in June to increase the charter's maximum enrollment of the Orga.nization from 1,96S to 3,930 effective July 1, 2015. In January 2015, TEA approved a nonexpansion amendment for Gttat
	-
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	Great Hearts America -Texas 
	Notes to the financial Statements 
	Basis ofAccounting 
	The a-ccompanying financial statements were prepared in oonfo,mlty with accoun11ng ptlnclplesgenerelty accepted in the United States of America (''U.S. GAAP"}. The Financial Accounting Standards Boa,ct ("FASS") is the accepted standard setting body tor establishing not-for-profit accounting and Rnanclal 
	re-porting ptincipl~. A(cordingly, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are 
	reccsnil.ed 

	when they are incurred. 
	Support and rtvenue are reP<)rted as an increase in unrestricted net assets un16s use ofthe related assets Is lunlted by donor-imposed restrictions. Ex.penses ;,re ,r:ported a~ decreases in unrestricted net a.ssets. Gains and k>sse.s on Investments ~nd other &55ets or llablllties are reJ)Ortt<I os lncreases or decreoseS: in unrestricted net assets unless their use I$ restricted by e)(pltelt doflor $1lpul&11o,, or by law. bpiri,tlons of te-mporary restrictions on net assets {e.g., the donor stipulated purpos
	Use of Estimates 
	l hc ptt~ratlon of finandol statements m confocmity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimales ~nd i>SSumptions thtit ;>ffect tM reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure$ of contingent assets and hb1Utle$ .lt the datt-of the fln.inc1al statements and tht reported amounts of revenues and ex-pens es during the reportlns period. Actual results could differ from thos~ tstimMes. 
	Basis ofPresenrarJon 
	Net assets and re\'enues. expenses, gains, and k>sses are classtfled as unrestricted, tempor~rilv restricted, and permanently restricted based upon the following criteria. 
	Unmtrjcted Net Assets -Unrestricted net assets consist of net assets that are not subject to donor• Imposed s.ttpulaUOl't$, Unrestrkttd net MStts ,esuh f1om operati!'g revenues, unrestricted contributions, and unrestriCted dividend and interes1 iocon1e. u nre:sttKted net ..ss1eu may be d~ ignated for specific purposes by ac::tlon of the Soard. ihe Orgi!ni?~tion h.ld unrestricted ntt (ISStts of $1.721.027 and $ 1,680,789 at June 30, 2016 and 20JS, respectively. 
	T.:mpororily Restricted Net Assets-Temporarily rest,kted net assets consist of assets that are $object to eri ntor or donor-imposed stipulations that require the passage of time or the oc:cum~nce of a specified eYent (actions by the Organization). When the donor restriction expires, the t;?mporarily restricted r,et iSStt$ are reclassified to unrestricted net asstts and rtp,o,ted in the s·1atements ofactivities as net assets releil$ed from restl'letions. The 1em1>orir11y reastricled description requites the 
	PY1ge9 

	Great Hearts America-Texas 
	Great Hearts America-Texas 
	Notes to the Financial Statements 
	Pcrmonently Restricted NetAssets -Ptrmanently re-strict~d ntt assets C-OMlst of ~tassets r(!(J\llrcd to be m.)lnt;,.inod In pe,pttulty Wit-h onty tM lncomo to b• used for the o,gin11.,t1on's chtltttr school ac.tivlties due to g,<\\ntordono<•lmpo5ed restrictions, The Orgin(zat.ion h;1d no permtnently~stflct:ed net aueu at June 30, 2016 and 2015. 
	Cash and Cash Equl\lalents 
	Forfinancial statement purpose, the Organization consi-ders all highly liquid investment instcuments with 
	an original m aturity of three months or less to be cash and cash e,quivakmts. The Organization maintains a balarice at a bank in excess. of the federaUy insured 11mits. The Organil.ation has not experienced ;in~• losses in such accounts and management belie,•es it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash deposits and investment holdin&s, At June 2016 and 2015. cash and cash equivalents a re comprised of ~Ilk accoul'IU withe b.>lunct o( $2,087,584 and $319,056; rtspecti\'CIV', 
	Due Ftom Government Agen<.ie1 
	Oue from govemment~gencie$ ls. comprhed of amounu dve from $late and dve from pa$~-throvgh gr~nu from TEA. Doe from stat e cooslsts of underpayments for the foundation school program made to the Schoolfrom TEA. Any ofthegovernment funding sources may, at t heirdis.cretion, request reimbursement for expenses or return of funds, or both, as a result of any noncompliance with·the te.rms of t he grant or contract. The Organization has never experience d any losses due to nonpayment, none a re expected, and ther
	Prt:PQidItems 
	Cert.,in paymenu to vendors teflect C<ist$ Mpliaiblti to fututc accounting per'lods and tire rt-eorded a.s premild ttems, Tht (OS"t of prepikj Items Is recorded as an eli!pense when <:on5vmed rather thin when purcha5,ed. 
	Allowance for Doubtful Ace,ounts 
	Management reviews accounts receivable (e.g,. due from) and promises to give on a regular basis to determine if any receivable will potentially be uncollectiblc. Management use-sits judgment, based on the b<!"st avaitablc facts and circumst.ince"S, and records a s~cific reserve for c:iach receivable to reduce tht receivable to the amount thilt is: expected to be oollcctcd. Factor$ ~uch ~s tho thitd•P~tty otg;u1izatlon's. abHtty to mee1 Its flnandal obl!ga11ons and h!Stol'tel)I experience t1re usl.?d to dete
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	Great Hearts America -Texas 
	Notes to the Financial Statements 
	Capital Assets 
	Capital assets, as defined by the Organization, are a.;sets with individual cost of more than $5,000. Such as.sets are recorded at cost if purchased or fair value ifdonated. Depreciation is c..lcutated on the straight­
	li ne method based on the following estimated useful lives of the respective assets. 
	li ne method based on the following estimated useful lives of the respective assets. 
	li ne method based on the following estimated useful lives of the respective assets. 

	Estimated 
	Estimated 

	Asset Classlflcation 
	Asset Classlflcation 
	Useful Lives 

	Bul!ding and improvements 
	Bul!ding and improvements 
	40years 

	Fur111ture and equipment 
	Fur111ture and equipment 
	3-10 vears 

	ComputefS alld $Oftware 
	ComputefS alld $Oftware 
	3·5 vears 

	lmpolrmentoft.ong-Llved A$$eU 
	lmpolrmentoft.ong-Llved A$$eU 


	The OrganliatkJn reviews the ca,l"/ing value ofpropertv e,nd equipment to, Impairment whentw!r events and circumstances indka,e the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future ca;h flows e~peaed to result from its use and eventual disposition. In cases where undtscounted expected future cash flows are less than the carrying vaJue, an impairment loss is recognized equa, to an amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair vatue of as.sets. The factors considered by manage
	UmdHeldfor Sole 
	Land he-Id forsale represent$ tand purchased by the Organltatlon that It is actively pursulf\Ba buyer for.is ofJun-e 30, 2016 and 2015. The I.and was sold onJul'f 19, 2016 (see N<,le 16). 
	Lease Deposits 
	The Organilation paid deposits forthe lease of building space. The amounts will be refunded or expensed i)\ the end of the le.tse term. 
	Loon lt$uance Cotr$ 
	Loan 1$.Suance costs are amortized over the term of the respecu,,a financing ilgtte1nents, 
	Revenue Recognition 
	Capitation rec-eived., including base capitation, entitlements, and special services, is recogni2ed in the period services are provided. Revenues from TEA are e3rned based on reported attendanc-e. PubUc and e>rivatc gtants received arc reoogrii!Cd in th~ period received and when the terms of the grant are met. 
	Loco/ Support Revenue 
	Cont.rlbuOons fromdonol'$ are recorded at fair value when the Organltatlon is In po5ser.slon of or tecetves an unconditional promise to give. Contributions are reoorde,d as unres1rl,ted, temporarily restrltted, or permanently restricted support based on the existence and/ex nature of any donor restrictions. Support th.it is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in temporarily restricted net assets in the ,opo-tting petiod in which the support iS reoognited. Whtn a donor rMtriction expires, that
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	Great Hearts America -Texas 
	Notes to the Financial Statements 
	sttpulattd timt ~trlction passes or purpose restriction is accompruhed, temporarily restricted net assets art recltssif!ed tc, unrestrkted net .is.sets and reported in the statements of activities as net asSEts released from restrk:t1on,. 
	Uncondltional promises to glve, lnc.-ludlng oonttibvtlon5, anct pledges thal are e>cpected to be within one vear, are recorded ar their net realbab" Vilue. vncondltiona,I promists to e~ thal a r~ expecte-d to be collected 1n future vears are recorded a1 the prese-nt value or es1lmated ftm.1re cash nows based on the fair value option. 
	(OUt-«.ed 

	promises to give are not included as revenues in t:he financial statements until such time as the ccmditio-ns ~re met, 
	COndition.al 

	Donated servicts are cecognited only iJ lht ~rvi~s recef'Jt>d either create or enhance assets or require s~ll1ed sk.Hls, are pr0'111ded bv lr'Klividuals possessin.e most skills, &od would typit<tUy nec:-d to be purchased If not provided by 00Mt1on. No material amount of donated servict's was ,ecerted durln_t the vears ended June 30, 2016 end 2015. 
	In-kind contributions ofgoods and services are reco.tded at fair marttet value Md tecosnltcd j$ rcvenu~ in the accounting period in which they are re~eived. No in-kind conuibutlons. were received during the years endett June 30, 2016 and 2015, 
	State:-(Ind FederQ/ Proorom Rtvenvcs 
	The Organization consider, .!!II a.overnment e,rant:s and contracts as exchange transactions rather than contributions. llle Orpnlzitton rec.()6nlzes revenue from foe•foMe'""ice transactions a5 services are rendered and, fot grants, as eligible eJCpe"dlrures are Incurred. Advanct$ from govc:-rnmcnt .iscncics are recorded as deferred re'lenue. Ellgible e,cpendltures incurred In excen oferan1 fond rtlmburscments a,r~ recorded as due from pass-through grants from TI:A. 
	Df'{errtd Re11em1<" 
	Amounts received for conditional promises togive for which the condition has not been met are recorded as deferred tevenue. \'Vhen the oondition is met, the revt"nuc wal be recognfzcd. 
	Federal tnc.ome TOJt lfle Organization ii a not-for-profit organuauoo an(I 1$ ex:empt from federal tn<:omt ~ x•~ under Section 5011<)(3) of the Internal Re-venue Code, except 10 the extent n has unreQ1ed bvsrne'5 actlvhles. As such, no provision for federal income taxes has. been made In the a~ompanylng financial statemenu. 
	ltle Organiu,tioo's policy is to record interest and penaltye:.xpense related to income taxes as interest and othel't1(pCO$C, t~pec«velv. AtJune 30, 2016 ond 2015, no interest or penalties have becm or are required to be accrued. 
	Functional Allocation ofExpenses 
	The costs of proVlCling various programs and activities have been summarited on a runctional b;uls. In the stttemer.u of activities. Accordingly, certain costs ha,,e been allocated among the programs and S\1ppo,11na seNlces benefited. 
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	Great Hearts America -Texas 
	Notes to the Financial Statements 
	Relat~dPorty Tra11soctlons 
	During the audit period, the Organization recetved donated S,ttvloes from Gre$tHe.oru Arizona ("'GHA·AZ""), a m eal sponsoc of Great Hearts America. The amount of services received Is minimal and, therefore, is not reRected In the financial statements. GHA-AZ is an 1,rizona not-for-profit SOl(cJ(3) 
	adminl$traU-.ie 
	-

	corporation that manages a network of 22 academlcally rigorous classlcal liberal a n.s academies (serving grades K-12) in the Phoeni><, Asizona metropolitan area. The Organization and GHA-AZ are considered affitiates as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, since the. Board of the Organization is comprised of kev management penonnel of GHA•AZ ;:md Great Hearts America. The amount due to related parties at Junt 30, 2016 totated $l80,0SS ($L02,742 In 2015), These transactions ,epresent expenditures incurred by GHA•AZ in
	conttngend e$ 
	C,ertain condiHons may exist as of the date the flnanclalititements are issued, wMch mav rest.1!t Ill a 10$S to the Organization, but whJchwlll only be reso~ed when one or more future events or.cur or fau to occur. The Organization's management assesses such contingent liabilities, and such ass'-$sment inherently invot.,es an exercise of judgment. In assessing loss contingencies related to legal proceedings that are pe nding against the Organization or unasserted daims that may result in such proceedings, ;
	1r,he asse,»ment of a continee11c.y ind.cates it iS prob&ble th.et a fl\tlterlal loss has ~en inc.orred and the amount or the llabllity C<in be esti1na1ed, theo the estimated liltbilitv would bt aeeroed in the Organlzatlon's fl,landal statemena. If the a.$$e$$mef'lt lndkates a pott,,tlally materi&i:s not probable, but Is rea$onab~ possible, or is probable, but cannot be estimated, then the nature of the contingent liability, togethe.rwiof the range of possible loss, ifdeterminable and material, would be dis
	l loss cont!ngen.cv 
	th an estima.te 

	Recent Accounting Pronounc<mt:nts k!U.u-In Febru,ry 2016, FASB lssuecl AcoountingStanchHd.$ Update ("ASU"> No. 2016·02, Lto.scs, which sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentatlon, and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract (i.e., lessees and lessors). The ne'IA• standard requftes lessees to apply a dual app,oach, classrfying teases as either finance or operating leases based on the principle of whether or not the lease is.etfe-cti\•ely a financed purchase by the le.s.
	12 months or less wHI be accounted for similar to existing guidance for operating I-eases today. The new standard requires lessors to account for leases uslng an approach that is substantially equrvalen1 to existing guidance for sales-type leases, direct financing leases, and operating Seases. The A5U Is expected toimpact theOrg,anh:ation's financial statements, as the Organization has certain operating and land lease iuronecrnents for which il is lht-lessee.. ihe standard ls effective on January l, 2020, w
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	Great Hearts America -Texas Not es tot"• Financial Statements 
	P;dlt ltlUOO" C.WU -In April 2015, FASS issued ASU No. 2015•03, -Imputation of Interest: S,'mpfifytrlg the Pre.sentotion ofOtbt Issuance Costs. The amendme nts in this. ASU require that debt i$5uancecosts ret&ted toe recogntted debt llbbility be present~ in the balance sheet as a direct deduction trom the carrying amount of that debt ltablllt'f', consistent v,lth debt dlscounts. The tccognition and measurement guidance for debt Issuance costs are not i ffectcd bv the a mendments in this ASU. TM amendments a
	fnten.st 
	Manaieeme.nt 

	R£reauc-1n May 2014, FASSiS:sued ASUNo. 2014•09, Revenue From Contracts With Cusrame:s, requiring an en0tv to ,eeognlte the ,;1mount of revtn\lC to which It expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods o, services to c::ustomel'$. The updJted nan.cta,d will ~ place most existin& revenue recognition gu1dance ln U.S. GAAi> when 11 be,comtis effective and ~rmiu lht vse of either a full retrospective or retrospective whh cumulative ettec, transition method, lnA\li,USt 2015, FASS issued ASU No. 201S
	Sub s~qu~nt fvt:ntS 
	The 0(8,tnitatloo hi$ evi l1.1aite,d subsf-quent l:'vt!nts through October 25, 2016, the date the finandal statemeot.swere avail3ble to be bsued rsee Note 16), 
	Redossljicatlon 
	Certain reclassifications have be-en made in lhe priorye{lr'S f1Mnciel stetemcots tO(Onform to the current year's presentation 
	i. Fair Val\le Measurements and Disclosures 
	The reqvlre,~ t,ts of Fclr Volue Meos1,1rtment.s ondDisclosures of the Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC') apply to 1:1ll flnanc::1111inslf,1menU and ell nonfinancial a.ssets and noofinandal liabilities that are being measured and reported on a fair value basis. Ftiir v~lue Is defln~ as the prke that would be 0< paid to transfer a fiabillty In an Ol'de1lyt~ns~c::tion between rmrkct participants at the measurement date. Farr Value MeosurementsondOJs.closure.s alsoestabllshes a falrvalvo hluarchy that p
	received to sell an asset 

	• 
	• 
	• 
	level 1 Inputs-Unadjusted quoted prices Tn active markets for ldentk:ill MStts or liabilities.. 

	• 
	• 
	Le,.·el 2 Inputs-Observable inpvt, other than Levell priett, such as quoted prkes for similar assets. or liabllltles, Of other lnplll$ that can be COfrobor&t~ by Ob!>Crvablc-market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. 


	Great Hearts America -Texas Notes to the Financial Statements 
	• 1el 3 Inputs -Unob$ervable inputs 1hat a~ supported by little o, no market ectivity and that are slg11lfkant 10 the falr value of the assets or llabilltles. Level 3 assets and liabllltles Include instruments WOOseva_!ue is determined using pricing models, discounted cash flowmethodologies, or 
	Le\
	flnantl.il 

	othervaluationtechniques, as well as lnstrumerits for which the determination of fair value requires significantmanagement judgment orestimation. 
	At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Oreanization had noinvestments. 
	The fairvalue of the Orpni.Llltlon's cash ond cash t'Quiv~dents, due from government agencies, prepaid ti1pe-nses, and deposiU appro~lmates the canyll"lg amounts of such lnsttument! due to their .short maturity. The TI'ur value of 1he debt approxlmttC-$ the eerryll\6 omount because the rate and terms currently;waHable to theOrganlzcitlon approxlmate therate and terms. on theerlstlngdebt, 
	3. 
	3. 
	3. 
	Due From GovernmentAgencies 

	Du
	Du
	e from government agencies consists ofthe followin
	g: 

	TR
	June 30, 2016 2015 

	OO
	OO
	ue from st;;,te settlement ofcu.rrent year underpayment u~ from pass-through grants from TEA: IOEA B Titlt II, P3tt A Titlet Chi1d Nutrition cluster 
	-

	$ 2,524,768 107,418 41,SllS U ,938 
	$ 625,595 4,2S2 

	TR
	Total due from government agencies 
	$ 2,686, 712 
	$ 629,Sn 


	4. Promises to Give 
	On February 2. 201?., the Organluu lon recetved a condltlon,ill promise to slve of Sl ,000,000 p,wable in annual Installments starting on January 1, 2013 through January 31, 2021. The Organ1iatlon met the oondition of openil"€ a school in the San Antonio area during fiscal year203S; thus, revenue discounted to the present value was recogojzed during the year ended June 30, 2015. The discount tate used to calculate the prt>sent value of long~term promises to gi\<e at Junl! 30, 2016 is 1.63%. 
	On June 4, 2012, ttlto,ganiiauon reQ?iiveo a oondltio.rt31ptomis~ toawe of $2,000,000 payablt in tnstalhnen1s Shl1ln.g on Julv 1, 201.3 th,oush oecember 31.. 2016. The Orgc1niiation rnet 1he co,,cfltion of opening a ~ hool In the San Antonio area during ftS~I year20lS; thus, revenue dls-co-unted iOthe presef\t \talue was recognized during the year ended June 3!1, 2015. 
	an,,v.11 

	On Junt> 25, 2014, tho Otganitatlon roc~lved an uncondrtional promise to give ofS500,000 payable in five $100,000 ;)nnl,al . st31"l"'g on et~rnbor 31., 2014 throu,ah December 31, 2018, The discount rate u.s.ed to calcvlate ~he p,esent Viilue ofIO"S-term proml$ts to gr,rt atJunt 30, W16 1$0.925'. 
	h'lstallmt.nu
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	On April 30, 201S, tht-Organitation r~ceived a conditional promise to gin~ of S500,000 payablt-betwe-en 201S and 2022, The OrgMitation met the condition by finding a matdi from another funder during fiscal year 20JS; thus, revenue discounted to the t,resent val1.1e was recognized during tM year ended Jun~ 30, 
	20JS. The. discount rate used to calculate the pte$ent value of Jong~tenn promises to gtve at June 30, 
	2016 tS 2.07'{. 
	On June 10, 201.S, the Organization retetved an unc,ondltlonal promise to glve of $500,000 payable In 2 Installments over 12 months. The contribution ts restricted for use to offset tile costs of low-hicome students who qualify for Free and Reduced lunch Program, including out-of-school time education programs, uniforms, school supplies, and athletic. fees in the San Antonio area. 
	On Jutv 7, 2015, the o rsiinJw uon reC'l!lved 3n unco11dilt0nal ptomi$e to give ofSS0,000 payable between 
	2.016 and 2019. The discount rote used to c3lcu1i10 O\e presMl v31ve of long4~ m promi.scas to g"Nt at June 30, 2.016 b, l.17'6. the conttlbutlon Is re-5tri«ed. 
	On June 30, 2016, the Organltatlon received an un-condlrlonal promise to give of SJ,000,000. The full amount will be paid in fiscal )!ear 2017; therefore, a discount rate WO$ not a9plled. The con1ribvlt()n IS 
	restricted. 
	restricted. 
	restricted. 

	UntonditionaJ promises to give consists ot the followmg: 
	UntonditionaJ promises to give consists ot the followmg: 

	2016 
	2016 
	June 30, 
	201s 

	GrOss amounts due in: One year or less One to rive years 
	GrOss amounts due in: One year or less One to rive years 
	$ 1,796,452 967,300 
	$ 783,000 1,883,0IS 

	TotaJ uncondnklnol promises to give 
	TotaJ uncondnklnol promises to give 
	z,763,752 
	2,66G,OlS 

	l ess discounts to net present value less allowan~ for-doubtful accounts 
	l ess discounts to net present value less allowan~ for-doubtful accounts 
	1122,373) 
	(202,720) 

	Net unconditional promises to give 
	Net unconditional promises to give 
	$ 2,641,379 
	$ 2,463,295 
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	S. Property an-d Equipmont Propert<y and equ(pmern conslStof the following: 
	June 30, 2016 2015 
	Land and lmprovement$
	Land and lmprovement$
	Land and lmprovement$
	-

	$ 2,404,878 
	$ 2,404,878 

	Building and impro\lements 
	Building and impro\lements 
	8, 329,104 
	3,300 

	Furnit ure and equipm ent 
	Furnit ure and equipm ent 
	416,3S4 
	4 3,737 

	ComputerS and sollw~re 
	ComputerS and sollw~re 
	68,334 
	80,590 

	Comtruction in proeress 
	Comtruction in proeress 
	550,033 
	6,511,4$0 

	TR
	11,768,703 
	9,043,98S 

	L~ 
	L~ 
	accumulated depree\atio:n 
	308,895 
	37,988 

	Net property and equipment 
	Net property and equipment 
	s 
	11,459,808 
	5 9,005,997 


	Depreciation ex~nse for the years ended June: 30, 2016 and 2015 totaJl!d $270,907 and S28,4S4, tespcctivetv 
	, . condltlon~I Contr1buttons 
	On S.e.ptember 5, 2014, the Organbatlon ree:el\•ed a condltlonat promise to Qtv-etn the amount of $312,994. Pa•1ment was contingent upon the Organization meeting certain ctheria sp'E!cffied by the donor. In fiscal year201S, the Organization received a payment of $S33,136on 1his conditional promise to give; however, since the condition had not been met, thii was recorded in deferred revenue. The condition was satisfied in August 2015 and the deferred revenue, along with the remaining pavment of $278,858 whic
	recognit.ed 

	7. Deferred Revenues 
	Deferred revenues consls1 of the foUowlng: 
	Jt.tne 30, 2016 20l5 
	Conditional promises to glve s $ 533,136 
	Deferred grant revenue 70,000 
	After school program deposits 34,612 74,235 
	Total deferre-d r('Vt:nues s 104,612 S 607,371 
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	8.. Notes Payable 
	On June 30, 2014, the Organization entered into a no1e agreem ent and received proceeds in the amount of $1,780,000. The note had an interest rate of3.759' and was.scheduled to mature on October 31, 2014. 
	On Jun-e 30, 2014, the Organization entered into a k,an commitment ag1eement to borrow $1,800,000. 
	The note had an intereSL rat~ of 6.S5'and was scheduled to mature on October 31., 2014. On July 1., 2014, th~ l,er\der funded tht loan and depoSit~ the Joan proce-eds into an es.crow account for thl? Organization to purchase lar,d. 
	The $1,?a0,000 an.d $1,800,000 not~ payabl~ descrllied above were refln.enced through tile Issuance of the long.term debt Instruments described below: 
	On October 28, 2014, the Orga.nhation entered Into a long-term debt instrument of up to Sl0,000,000 in principal ("Jefferson Sank.loan"). The loan bore an interest rate of 4.8% end was scheduted to mature on October 27. 2017. 
	On October 28, 2014, the Organiz..ttion also entered into two 1ubo,dinated notc.-s, each with prtnclpil lmmedlately outstanding of$1,000,000 and 3Mu.il inte-test or 3.75%, The entire unpaid amount of the stJbQrdin.itcd no1~$, 1ose-ther wtth an .a.ccrucd unpaid lntorost, wort to bo payable on October 27, 2011. One of these subordinated notes was not required to be paid back 10 the lender effective Jun.e 30, 2016 and Is lnduded In re~enue. 
	prlnc1p.il 

	The Jefferson Bank lo:m and the other $1.000,000 subordinated note were refinanced through the im.rarn:e of the long.term deb~instrumenu described below: 
	On June 30, 2016, 1he Of8N1ization entered into a long-term debt insttument of up to $16,768,800 in ~l tinCip,al {"Mulvtll of o,rn,ha loall"), The 10:.11 beal'S .-n Jntorast ~tc of 3.98% and if stheduled to ma1vre on June 2.9, 2021. 
	On June 30, 2016, the Organizatkin also entered Into a subordinated note .of $4,l.9t200. The subordinate loan bears an interest rate of 8% and is scheduled to mature on November 30, 2021. 
	Pogf! 18 
	Great Hearts America -Texas 
	Notes to the Financial Statements 
	Notes payable cons~t of the fo llowing: 
	Notes payable cons~t of the fo llowing: 
	Notes payable cons~t of the fo llowing: 

	TR
	2016 
	June 30, 
	201s 

	Promlswrv note pe')·abJe to Jefferson Bank In lhe orlg!nal maldmum amountof $10,000,000, lnc!ud!ng lntere:S-1 at 4.80¾; due Octc-t:er 2017: collateta!lzed bvJ)(Opetty Subordinate notes p~ablt in the odgimd amount ar,'IOunt of$1,000,()00 eoct,, i.ndtidlng inle1eJt 111 3.75%; d ue oe1obet 2017; coll:ttt.m:itired byproporty Debt in.Stl'\lltlcnt pay:tb!c 10 M1.1tu11l of Om;,t-wl in the tl'l.a11in'lum :tmou nt of$16,768,$00, in(:fuding intcircrt a111.98%; due J1.1nc 2021; colla;cr.illzed by propcrt)' Sub:,rdin~o
	Promlswrv note pe')·abJe to Jefferson Bank In lhe orlg!nal maldmum amountof $10,000,000, lnc!ud!ng lntere:S-1 at 4.80¾; due Octc-t:er 2017: collateta!lzed bvJ)(Opetty Subordinate notes p~ablt in the odgimd amount ar,'IOunt of$1,000,()00 eoct,, i.ndtidlng inle1eJt 111 3.75%; d ue oe1obet 2017; coll:ttt.m:itired byproporty Debt in.Stl'\lltlcnt pay:tb!c 10 M1.1tu11l of Om;,t-wl in the tl'l.a11in'lum :tmou nt of$16,768,$00, in(:fuding intcircrt a111.98%; due J1.1nc 2021; colla;cr.illzed by propcrt)' Sub:,rdin~o
	$ 
	8,336,117 4,l9Z..200 
	$ 6,280,2'2 2,000,000 

	TR
	$ 
	12,528,!117 
	s 8,280.122 


	Agg,cgatc ma,turities required at June 30, 2016 were as follows: 
	Year ending June 30, 2017 s 2018 2019 2020 50,138 2021 8,39$,7$9 The,eafter 4,083,020 
	$ 12,$28,917 
	Interest expeMe totaled $S4i,t20 and$l0l,109for th$yeilt'$ ended JuAe 30, 2016and 2015, respectively. 
	9, leases 
	The Orga:nization leiJ:ses building space pursuant to noncancellable operating lease agreements expiring 
	thtough 2025. 
	One of the le1se agreements. requtres the o,gan11at1on to obtain~ letttr of credrt that ct11n be used fn t he even1 the Organization cannot pay the required liase payments, On Mcirch 2, 201S, a ,hil'd•03tly nonprofit corporation entered Into a lener of credit reimbursement agreement for the Organl:catio-n to meet this requirement. The amount of the letter of credit wa.s originalfv $359,680➔ The. outstanding amount on the letter of credit as of June 30, 2016 is $0. 
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	Future minimum lease paymenb under noncance-llable operating leases as of June 30, 2016 were as follows; 
	Year ending June 30, 2017 $ 936,023 2018 952,623 2019 1,026,770 2020 712,385 2021 738,974 i hei<eaOer 3,121,149 
	Future mi.nlmum lease payments $ 7,487,924 
	Rent expense totaled $1,,134,444 rorthe yeat ended June 30, 2016 ($1U9,109 In 2(U.S). 
	10. Commitments and Contingencies 
	the Organization receives a portion of its funding from federal and state programs that are governed by various rul~s and ,cgulatiom, of the grantors, The ultimate determination of amounts received under these proerams is generally based upon allowabkl costs reported to the eovernment. Until such audits tiave been completed ind fit1al s@tllemtnt re~chf!d, tht l'~ e:xins a contJngencv 10 rt-h.md My amounl received In e.:tess. of all01,vable cosls. Ma,-,ageme,n is of 1he opinion that no mat&r1al llabillty wm 
	During the yeatS ended June :30, 2016 and 201.S, the Organization entered Into ,ontracl$ to perform construction on new schools. The construction commitment balance and re,ainage payable totaled $1,1S3,S04 a nd $7, 710, respectively, at Jur,e 30, 2016, and Sl,779,890 and $528,898, respectively, at Junt> 30, 2015. 
	11, Temporttrity Rt-strictcd Net As,cts 
	Temporanly te$ltlcted net assets consist of a.s-sel$ that a,e subJec1 to gr.anto, or dono,-in1posed­stipulation$ that require the pas.sage of time or 1he ocw rrence ofa specified event. 
	June 30, 
	2016 
	2016 
	2016 
	2015 

	r-ounda!lon School Ptogram-State ofie)(as Donor restrkted contributions 
	r-ounda!lon School Ptogram-State ofie)(as Donor restrkted contributions 
	$ 3,125,813 1,487,06S 
	$357,509 500,000 

	TR
	S 4,612,878 
	$ 857,509 


	Great Hearts America -Texas 
	Notes to the Financial Statements 
	Net assets are released from donor restrittion by incurrln,g e)(l)en.ses Siltrsfving 1he purpor,e or time 
	restrictions spedfie d by donors as folJows: 
	restrictions spedfie d by donors as folJows: 
	restrictions spedfie d by donors as folJows: 

	June 30, 
	June 30, 

	2016 
	2016 
	2015 

	Foundation School Progcam -.State ofTexas 
	Foundation School Progcam -.State ofTexas 
	$ 12,127,987 
	$ 3,605,903 

	Other state aid 
	Other state aid 
	190,585 
	14 

	Public Ctlarter School l"PCS"J start4 up grant 
	Public Ctlarter School l"PCS"J start4 up grant 
	608,962 

	Child Nutrition d uster 
	Child Nutrition d uster 
	331,324 
	56,247 

	IDEA 8-CIUsttr 
	IDEA 8-CIUsttr 
	107,418 
	53,125 

	Tltlt II, P<lfl A 
	Tltlt II, P<lfl A 
	41,S88 

	Title I, Part A 
	Title I, Part A 
	H,938 

	Other grants 
	Other grants 
	EiZ,934 

	TR
	$ 12,874,774 
	$ 4,324,ZS1 


	12. Ernploye-o eeneflt Pl~n 
	401(k) Pion-Theo,ganl1atlon previously hac.f 3 401(~) pl.1n rt>t tht be.ntfitof substantially alt empklyl!:e.t The Organb:atlon's contributions to the plan were a1 the disetetion of the Board &n,d no eontllbutions 
	wereevermade by theO,ganiiation. Effective July l . 2014, the Orga,liiatlon no longer orte,ed tht 40l(k) employees' profit sharing plan since it switched to the Teacher Retirement $y$tem of Tel(.U ("TFtS"), 3$ described below. 
	Pension Plan Obligations TRS Plan Otsc-ription -The Ort,ani.!.a:Uon participat~ in a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pensiOn plan that has a speei31 fu ndine situation, The pt.an is &dministe1ed by TRS, TRS' defined benefit pensk>n plan is estitbllshed and odinitihle,ed In ac<Otdance with the Tew Constitution, Article XVI, Section 67 and TelCSs Government Code, Trtle 8, Subtille C, The 1)ension trv:.t fund is a qualified pension trust under Section 40l(a) ofthe tnternal Revenue Cod-e. The Tex
	All empk>yees of publlc, state~upported educational ins-titutions in Texas who are employed for one•half ormoreofthe star1dard wo<k load and whoa re not exempted fro-m inc:mbcnhip under Tt'xas Go•,ernment Code, Title 8, Section 8'2.2.002 a,e covered ,by m.s. 
	The TRS plan differs from singk? employer plans In the followlngways: 
	1. 
	1. 
	1. 
	Charters are legelty 1,eporate entities f,om the stal'~ and ~ach other. 

	2. 
	2. 
	Assets cont<ib11ttd by one chal'ter or independent $.cbOOI dislJkt ("ISO") may be used for the benefit of an employee of another charter or ISO. 
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	3. The unfunded obligations get passed along to other chan:ers or ISOs. 
	4, There ts not a withdrawal pen;;lty ror leaving the TRS system. 
	Pension Pion Fidudory Net Po#tion 
	Al Aue,u1t 31., 2015, TRS total plan !IS.sets ~r~ $149,'780,061,824: &ccumubi:t(>d bt!i>tfit oblieation Ml$ $163,887,3'75,172; and the plan was 78.43% unfonded. 
	Oet31.1ed Information about 1'RS' fiduciary net posttion Is available In a separatety Issued CompreheMlve 
	Annual Financial Repon ("CAf:R") that Includes financial statements and required supplementary 
	information. That report ma~• be obtamed on the Internet at / about/documenH/cafr.pdfiiCAFR; by writing to TRS at 1000 Red River Street, Austin, TX, 78701-2 698; or bycallrng ~s12• 542-6592. 
	http://www.trs.state.tx.us

	Contributions Contribution requircm"nts ate establishOO or amended pursuant to Article 16, S<,ction 67 of tho Tcxa:. Col\Stlt\ftiOll, which (CQtd(es the Ttkf$ ~glsl:nureto cst,.bUsh _. member contribution (ate of 001 les.s th.1n 6% of the membe($ annu3t compens.10on and~ state contt1bution r,lte of not IOS$ th;)n 6.% and not more than JOO{; of the aggn~gate annual compensation palid to members of TRS during the fiscal year. Tex.a$ Government Code, Section &2L006 prohibits benefit lrr.p,ooements, tt as a re.
	the partlcul.ar action, 

	Employtt tontribvUon rates -;ire set lo st:ite statute, Texas GO\/emment Cod~, Section 82S.402, Senate &Ill 1458 of th~ 83id Texas Legislah1re amel'lded T@x.-s Govcmmtnt Codt, St-ction 825.402 fos member cont,lbutio~ ancl established emplovee contribution (jlei for fl'S(3I years lOL4 1hroue:h 2017. ll ilso added a l,S'4 contribution for emptoyerJ not paying Olcl Age Survivor and Dls<1bilttv tn$urclnce r'OAson on certain employees forflscalye.ar20tS as dls<;u$sed in Note l of the TRS 2014 CAFA.. The 83rd Te1
	tffec;t.Ne 

	contributors 10 the pl~n indude membors, the OrgMitalion, Md I.he state or Texas c1s. the only none:mployef conllibuth'\t entity ("'NtCl"'). The st;ate is the emplover ro, seniOt colleees, medlc~I ~choob, .and state -agencies, 1ndud1ng TR,S In. each respectl\'e role, the state oontrlbu1es to the pla,, In &«orda1,ce with state statut~ end the GAA. 
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	As the NECE for public. education and junlO( colleges, the state of Texas cof'ltrib\ltes to TRS on amount 
	equal to the cur,ent employer contribution rate times the aggregate annual compensation of all participating members of the pension trust fund during t hat fiscal year reduced by the amounts described 
	below which are paid by the Organization. The Organization is required to pay the employer contribution 
	rate in the following instances: 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	On the portion of the member's salary that e11ceeds the statt.110<v minimum for membeN entitled to the statutocy minimum under Section 2L402 of the Tei<as Education Code ("'TEC"). 

	• 
	• 
	During i new member's first 90 days of employmtnt. 


	• 
	• 
	• 
	When any part or all ofan employee's satary is paid by tederal fundingsources, a private!~• sponsored source, from noneducational and general, or local fu nds. 

	• 
	• 
	When the employln.g district is a pubUc junior college or Junior college district, the dlstnct shall contribute to TRS an amount equal to SO% of the state contribution rate for certain instructional or administrative employees; and 1~of the state contribution rate for all othe, employees. 


	In addition to the Organization employer contributions listed below, when employin_g a retiree of TRS, the Orgaimlation stiall pay both the mcmbc.contribution and the state contribution as an employment after ,eurement suttholrgt. The Org~nlnUon's contribution to TRS docs not rep~~nt more lh:an 5% of the totill conttlbutl<n,s to tho TRS pl~n. Thert have boen no ctU:tf'l&@eS th~t would ~ffect the comp~t;s<in of employer contributions from yeM to year. 
	2016 2015 
	Member (employees) 7.2% 6.7% 
	NECE ~.8% 6.8% 
	Employers 6,.8% 6.8% 
	Employer contributions $ 112,S90 $ Sl,959 
	M,ember contributions $ S68,394 $182,918 
	Non-OASOI contributions $ 119,618 s 39,126 
	13. Health lnsur~nce 
	ou,111.g the years ended Juna 30, 201611\cJ 2015, employees of 1he Orf:Mita,tion wttre covtrf'd b•t a h<ialth ln$Ur,rnc.e plan. ~e Organii.1110,, con1rlbuted S3t.6•$893 per emptovte, per month {$283•S8S7 pef emplQYee, per month for 201S1 depending on the employees' health tn5uri1nce pWn rate. Emplovees, at their option, authorbed payroll withholdtngs to pa'( contributions or premiums for depellden1s. All premiums were paid to lkensed insurers. 
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	14. Economic: Oe-pendency 
	Oudn,g the year e,,ded June 30, 2016, the Organization received appro>:imately 60% of its contributions. fcom 1hree ttvenue source-s (87% fr<im three ,~~•<u,uf? sources. in 2015), Wlth schools operational, the Organlzai:ton earns the majority of Its fonding from various feder1t state, and local entities. Changes in state fonding level$ for charte, sct.ool:s In TexM could ha\•e a significant impact on the Organization's future revenues. 
	lS. State Compliance Matters 
	8'1dgetory Matters 
	In accordan-c~ with the TEA Special Supplement to the Financial Accoun1ablllty System Flesource Gu1de Chiuttr Schools, if the original and final budgeted amounts vary by more than 10% of the orlglnaf budieted arnounts, a wtitlen .s.t"tement discu5sing the causes of the variances is required. 
	The Board approved one budget tmcndment in June 2016, This amendment was ne<:essary to more accurately reflect the budge! and actual e>:pe:ose tranS:.lcUons in ac.cordanco with the Texas requirements. 
	The final budgeted amounts varied by more than 10¾ of the budge1tcl amou,,ts .1$ follows; 
	o<lgln.il 

	• 
	• 
	• 
	State program revenue incie-,st-d by $2,319,513 as a result of higher than anticipated Average Daily Attenda;nce and pe, stude,,t allotment; areate1 thon &nlld_patt"d atlotments for Special Education, Compensatory fdu<ation, 8lllrl&val and New ln.sttuctional Foci!ily fvndtng, and Tier II funding. 

	• 
	• 
	Fede,al f)rotram revenue: increased by SSS,380 as the result of a decrease in the National School l uoch Prog<am because of lower pal'ticipation and an increase from being awarded additional funds for IDEA a, Tltle I Part A, and Title II Pan A, 

	• 
	• 
	Function 13 -decrease of $128,263 due to outside professional development being llml!ed dt.JC tC> ca,sh flow limitalions. 

	• 
	• 
	Function 21-decrease of $411,980 for teclassiflcation of pe<Sonnel e.)(ptMfli., 

	• 
	• 
	f1.1nc,tlon 23-Increase of $38'2,899 for reclassil'lcation of per1onnel cost. 

	• 
	• 
	Functiorl 36-increase of $83,100 for personnel cost and related benefits ofthe athletic coach position orlg!n&l,V Included in Function 11, instructional budget. 

	• 
	• 
	Function 41 -decre;se of $696,000 due to ,eclass-ifkation of budgeted expense related to softwb~ ~nd copier tease to Ftinction 53 -data processing services, decrease of personnel cost for positions which were vac.Jted cllld remained uMill(!d lor-petiods th,oughout the year and limitations on travel during the first two quartPI'$ of the year due to cash tlow limitations, 
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	• 
	• 
	• 
	• 
	Function 51-increased $376,7S.3 due to several categories of expense occurring during the vear that we,e not planned for during the budget cycle -decision to hire two intemal maintenam:e protessiona!s during the year, additional supplie~ tor maiMenance and rep-air at the Irving and 

	re-cordatiM ofIrving lease on a straight-line basis, increase in maintenance and re~irservices t111d trtivel expenses or facilities management 
	Northern Oaks campus.es, 


	• 
	• 
	Functlon S3 -Increased $82,000 due 10 software. and copier lease expenses originally budgeted to Function 41, general administration, mo\•ed to this function. 

	• 
	• 
	Function ?l -in<teastd $396,820 due to additt0,,al lr1ttren pa-.•men1 made dut to debt refintincing, write-off of bond amortization related to refinanced debt, and uobudgeted Interest payments on 


	subordinate debt. 
	In acco«fance with the TEA Speoal Supplement to the Financial Accountability System Resource Guide Charter Schools, variances between the final budgeted amounts and the actual amounts that exceed 105' of the final budget amount also require a written statement di$CUSSing the cause of the variance. 
	Tht: actual t xpen.sts did not vory bv more than 10% from lhe fin.al ~mended budg~t. 
	16. ents 
	Subse,que.nt Ev

	In May of 2016, the Organization entered into a sale agreement fot 1.69 undeveloped acres of the17 acres of the Great Hearts.Academy-Northem Oaks campus for a totaJ price of$ 375,000. At the time of the sale agreement, the ent.ire .s.a!e amount wa.s placed into escrow and, on May 11, 2016, $100,000 was released to the Organization to be held ;u eamest money. The sale was completed on July 19, 2016 at which time the remaining amount due le.ssdiarges and legal fees wa.s deposiied into the Organization's oper~
	-
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	Other Supplemental Information 


	ps&co.l 
	ps&co.l 
	Great Hearts America 
	Great Hearts America 
	Great Hearts America 
	-

	Texas 

	Schedules of Expenses 
	Schedules of Expenses 

	Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 
	Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 

	2016 
	2016 

	f)(penses 
	f)(penses 

	6100 
	6100 
	Payroll costs 
	$ 9,689,520 

	6200 
	6200 
	Professlonc11 cine! contra<tc<! services 
	3, 132,525 

	6300 
	6300 
	Suppltes and m3tcriats 
	2,187,683 

	6400 
	6400 
	Other ope<atlng costs 
	737,191 

	6S00 
	6S00 
	Oebt servlce costs 
	$26,974 

	TR
	Total expenses 
	$ 16,S73,a93 


	2015 
	S 3,450,S63 1,194, 703 1,063,376 S7S,229 326,684 
	S 6,610,555 
	Page 26 
	Great Hearts America -Texas 
	Great Hearts America -Texas 
	Schedule of Capital Assets June 30, 2016 
	Asset Cla»ification 
	Asset Cla»ification 
	Asset Cla»ification 
	Local 

	Property a nd Equipment 1510 Land and improvements 1520 BuUdlng at1d lmp,ovcments 1530 Futniture and e(lulpment 1532 Comput~cs and software 1S80 COnstructton In progress 
	Property a nd Equipment 1510 Land and improvements 1520 BuUdlng at1d lmp,ovcments 1530 Futniture and e(lulpment 1532 Comput~cs and software 1S80 COnstructton In progress 
	$ 

	TR
	s
	-



	Ownership Interest State 
	Ownership Interest State 
	Ownership Interest State 
	Federal 

	$ 
	$ 
	2,4-04,878 8, 329,104 416,3-S4 S6,078 SS0,033 
	s 
	12,256 

	$ 11,756,447 
	$ 11,756,447 
	s 12,256 
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	Great Hearts America -Texas Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
	Year Ended June 30, 2016 
	Variance 
	Variance 
	Variance 

	With Final 
	With Final 

	Sudgettd AITIOlll\lt 
	Sudgettd AITIOlll\lt 
	8ud,cet 

	Ortglnal 
	Ortglnal 
	...., 
	Actual 
	Pos!;lve (Ne.eati\<e) 

	Revenu~s and Other Support 
	Revenu~s and Other Support 

	5700 LOC!II wppon 
	5700 LOC!II wppon 
	s 
	5,321,113 
	s 
	5,173,676 
	s 
	4,997.413 
	$ 
	1176,263) 

	5800 Stale progtam tever._'!Af. 
	5800 Stale progtam tever._'!Af. 
	11,08:1,793 
	15,404,306 
	15,086,876 
	{317,430) 

	S900 Fede111l prosr::im re"o'C11>Jc$ 
	S900 Fede111l prosr::im re"o'C11>Jc$ 
	228.960 
	284,340 
	285,211 
	871 

	Tot:i! rq•,rc:nu~silnd o~<:r ;uppo<t 
	Tot:i! rq•,rc:nu~silnd o~<:r ;uppo<t 
	18,634,866 
	20,862,322 
	'20,369.500 
	l492y8l2l 

	Expi;,nsu 
	Expi;,nsu 

	11 
	11 
	lns1n;ctional 
	8,67(.,163 
	8,634,852 
	8,.28S,584 
	349,268 

	13 Currioo!1.1m d-welopment and 
	13 Currioo!1.1m d-welopment and 

	instructional staff develottment 
	instructional staff develottment 
	141,92S 
	1.3,662 
	14,240 
	(S781 

	ll 111stroctlonal leadership 
	ll 111stroctlonal leadership 
	411,980 

	23 School leadershlp 
	23 School leadershlp 
	?80,77? 
	U63,676 
	1,146,428 
	17,24-8 

	31 Guldonce, oounse!ln&, and evall.l.ltion 
	31 Guldonce, oounse!ln&, and evall.l.ltion 

	stf\•lces 
	stf\•lces 
	58,170 
	54,925 
	50,760 
	4, 165 

	33 Health services 
	33 Health services 
	U!O,n2 
	180,776 
	165,648 
	15,126 

	3S recd ser,!ce,
	3S recd ser,!ce,
	-

	360,948 
	390,948 
	414,010 
	(2..3,0621 

	36 Extracurtlcu!ar aalvll!es. ., Gtt1eta1 ad:mini~tflllk>I'\ 
	36 Extracurtlcu!ar aalvll!es. ., Gtt1eta1 ad:mini~tflllk>I'\ 
	189,403 2,745,16 1 
	272,503 2.,049, 161 
	280,606 1..,979,!41 
	(8,143► 70,020 

	51 Plant maintenance af'ld opeu!.lions 
	51 Plant maintenance af'ld opeu!.lions 
	2,ceo,697 
	2,457,450 
	2.237,988 
	219,462 

	S3 Data p<ocessitlg s1H'\'1ce:s 
	S3 Data p<ocessitlg s1H'\'1ce:s 
	1n,220 
	259,220 
	279,580 
	(20,360► 

	61 
	61 
	COmmul'lil'f $~rviees 
	274,699 
	275. 100 
	258.861 
	16,239 

	71 
	71 
	O!!bl UH'Vid! 
	453,UIO 
	&SO.COO 
	826,97S 
	U,02S 

	81 furidroi:i,ins 
	81 furidroi:i,ins 
	548,13tl 
	579,537 
	6.34,932 
	(S4,4951 

	lotill cl!pem,e$ 
	lotill cl!pem,e$ 
	17,077,229 
	11,181,808 
	16,S73,893 
	60791S 1

	Oioinso in not .ll$8U 
	Oioinso in not .ll$8U 
	l,SS?,63? 
	3,680,S1~ 
	3,795,607 
	11S,093 

	t~iatisstu ,1t tqginningofye.r 
	t~iatisstu ,1t tqginningofye.r 
	2,sas,298 
	',S}S,298 
	2,S38,298 

	Nqt .>ssois.it qnd ofyq.ir 
	Nqt .>ssois.it qnd ofyq.ir 
	s 4,095,935 
	$ 
	6,218,Stl 
	$ 
	6~33J,9()S 
	s 
	11s,093 
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	Compliance Section 

	ps&Co.l 
	ps&Co.l 
	ps&Go.! Padgett Stratemann 
	Independent Auditor's Report on lntemal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standard~ 
	To the Board of Dlrectot'$ 
	Great Hearts Am~rica-Texas 
	San Antonio, Texas 
	Wt haY'e avditecf, ih accordance w ith the auditin.g standards generally accepted in the Unit ed States of Amtritc!I and the standa,d~ applicable to financial audits contained in GovernmentAuditing Standards Issued by the Comptroller Gl!'ntnil of the Unitf!'-d Stat6, the financial statements of Great Hearts America -Texas (th~ "Orgonitatlon"') whkh comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2016, 1he <eteted statements of actlvltle, and cash flows fof the vtar then tnded, and the related no
	Internal Control OverFinonclal Reporting 
	In pla11ning and performing our audi;. o( the financial statements, we considered the Organlutlon's illternal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate In the circumstances for the purpose of ex;pressinc our opinion on the fll'lancial statements. b1.1t not for the purpose of Cllprcssing .in opiflion on the dfoctivcncss of the Organization's internal control. Accordlngly, we do not eJr:ptM$ in opiniof'\ oo tile offoctl\•@ness of Organization's 
	A deficiency In lntem.;,I control exists when the desis.n or op,m1tlon of a contt0I does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their a5,slgned functlon,, to prevent or detect and correct misstatements on a timelv basis. Amaterial weakness ts a deflcfencyJ or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a materiaJ misstatement of the Organization's financial statements will not be prevented or d-ete,cted and corrected on 
	Our consideration of lnternal control was for the limited purpose desulbed In the fil'$l paragr<1ph of this, section and was noi designed to identify all deficiencies in internal conuol that might be m;)terlal weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not Identify anv doflcicndes in internal control that we considc:,r to be material weaknesses. We did identify certain deflcienctes In lnteinal control dtS-Cticbcd in tht a.r,comp♦ nyh'18 Schedul~ ofAndings and Qu
	AU,nJ< 
	AU,nJ< 
	AU,nJ< 
	HOUSTON 
	SANANTONIO 

	Ill l SMTO>f SPIU~GS~!),.SUJtESSO 
	Ill l SMTO>f SPIU~GS~!),.SUJtESSO 
	l ~&O PO$lOfll( IIQVltVMP, ~tl'ITT! llOO 
	tOONE.LOOll-,10,SIJITE UDO 
	?OlL AAlatl $00!17'49t,t, 

	A.UsnN,rcu.s18704 
	A.UsnN,rcu.s18704 
	1100$.TW, T~AS 1XlS6 
	$AN AUf0tJIO, 'tElli\S,.tlti 
	WH: ,-Al>GlTI'-Ol'A,(()M 

	~124~()tl1 
	~124~()tl1 
	113J.3S!'3'J 
	210t28 {,2Sl 


	Compliance 011d Other Matters 
	As partof obtaining reasonable assurance about whe1herthe Organization's finandal statements are free frorn material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, rtQulalions, contracts, and granta11eemenli, nonc:omptiaoce with which could have a direct and material eff~l on the determination or financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on comp!la~ with those p,ovislons was not on objective of our audjt and, accordingly,,~ do not expr~s such an opinion,
	The Organization's Responses to the Flndlngs 
	Tht Organitation's responses to the findings identified In our audit are described in the accompanying S<:htdute of Findings and Question,d Costs and Correcti\•e Action Plan. The Organization's respon~were not subjected to tht auditing procedures applied in the audit of lhe financial statements and, acc°'d'ingly, we e:)(pre:ss no opinion on them, 
	Purpose o/Thl$ Report 
	t he purpose ofthis. report ls. solety to describe the scope of our t~ting oflnterncil co,wol.ind compliance and the resuhs of that testing. and no-t to opinion on 1he effectlve,1ess of the O,ganbatlon's internal control oron compliance. This report is an integral patt ofan audit perfo<med In accordance with Government Auditing Stondords fn considering the Organization's inte.mal control and compliance. ACcOf'dmgty, this communication is not suitable tor any other purpose. 
	provkle.an 

	Sacn Antonio, Texas Octobor 25, 2016 
	PuaeJO 
	Great Hearts America -Texas Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
	Year Ended June 30, 2016 
	I • Summary of Al.lditor's Results 
	I • Summary of Al.lditor's Results 
	I • Summary of Al.lditor's Results 

	BnandalStatanents 
	BnandalStatanents 

	Unmodified 
	Unmodified 

	Internal control rHer financial reportlne;: Matenal weakries:s(es} ldeflufle-d? 
	Internal control rHer financial reportlne;: Matenal weakries:s(es} ldeflufle-d? 
	____,., 
	X 
	No 

	SigAificant dE:Oc:ienc•Aie,J idt111ilied 1h i 1 a 1ec not considt:Jed to be meteri:il we:ik~>lc,H 
	SigAificant dE:Oc:ienc•Aie,J idt111ilied 1h i 1 a 1ec not considt:Jed to be meteri:il we:ik~>lc,H 
	__
	_None Reported 

	TR
	Yes---
	-


	u-Financial Statem ent Finding 
	u-Financial Statem ent Finding 

	Finding 2016·001; Procvrement 
	Finding 2016·001; Procvrement 


	Type of Finding: Compliance 
	Cdterlo: The TtA Special Supple,nent to tht r.ir,ancial Ac.counUlbilitv Sy.stem Resource Guidt-Cltarte, School Upda1e S.O requires purchase:; be mtidc uslrtg b pr0<:e'Ss that provides lhe best value for the charter schQol In accordance with TEC 44.0.31-44.901. 
	Condirion: The Organization currently is utilizing a vendor to purchase textbooks that wa.s. not properly procured in the prior ye3r yet the Organization continued to use the vendorIn 1he current year. 
	ConttJt.t; The vendor was not properly procured in the prior year and the Organization did not subseQ:uenttv go through the procurement process in the current year to res.owe the compliance txception. 
	Cause ond Effect: fiscal year 2015 wa$ the Organ12aUon·s first year of Texas charter school oper,nlcns and, as a result, the Organization did not have current policies to address competitive procurement. In fiscal year 2016, the procurement policies were developed and Implemented for new vendors, however, the Organization did not ensure vendors it continued to use from tM prior year were procured in accordance with the criteria described above or the newly implemented policies.. 
	~«omm~nd¢tlon: We recommend tht Orsaniz.ition perform tho proper procurement procedures to ensure compllan,ewith the crlterl~ deicrll>ed 3bove. 
	Vlews ofResponsible 0/fK.lols: See Corr&Ul/e Action Plan. 
	Poge 31 
	Great Hearts America -Texas Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs -Continued Year Ended June 30. 2016 
	Anding 2016-002: Temporarilv Restricted Net Assets l ype of Finding: Significant Deficiency 
	Criteria: ContribuUons recie!ved with donor~imp01ed restrictions arf:t r~uirtd to be rt"COrded 3-S temporaril<y resuicted ntt assets and once th@ restriction has betn rnet, those amounts are released from restl'ktions and ,eclassifi&d to untestlicted net asset. 
	Ccnditloo: In fiscalyear 2016, the Organi!ation did not h<we .=i formal proce$.S in otace to aco.,rately track 1he expeMes of \he <estrlcted contribvtions bei:ng released from restr'tetion. 
	CoMexr: We noted several instances where the release from restriction was not property identified. 
	Couseond Effect: Due to lack of a formal process ill tf1is area, no amount ofrelease from restrictions could bt-inaccuratety present,d. 
	Rtcommendation; Wt recommend the Orgti.nizatk>n implement formal poficics ond ptott-dur~s lo tf&l.'k the 1empor3rllv ,e.sttlctt<:I eontrtbutlons to ensu,e the 3motmts 8fe properlv dass!fied 8S tele8std from ,estrictioi,s wtlen 1he donor ,e,trletlc>nt h.tve been met. 
	VJews ofResponslhle 0/flcfafs: See CortectNe A(tlon Plan. 
	Finding 2016-003: Segregation of Duties Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency 
	CriterkJ: Segregation of duties is a key financial reporting concept th.-t ensures <1dequote oversight n d review cic.1sts to reduce the ris-k of error and fraud In the financh,1 na,tements. 
	Condition: A smi!II numbEr of people have the primary respon$lbllltv to, parfotmlng m0$t of the accounting and financial reporting duties. As a result, some aspects of lntemal controls that rely upon adequate segregation ofduties are misslog. 
	Context: During the year, the Organfaation experienc-ed turnover in the accounting/tinance department. 
	ci,vse ond Effect; segregation of duties c:.n help rtdu:te the ti~k of o<ror and fravd; hO\vtivtu, these con1rols were mlssine due to 1he <ecem tumove, In the accoun1inglfi~nce department. 
	Recommend!;ition: We recommend the Otganliatlon consider add!tlonat altematNe procedures to the current internal control system and evaluate possibilities to strengthen the system, particularly as the Organization continues to gtow. 
	Views of,q"5p()nsfble Of{iciols: s~co,rective Action Pl.an. 
	Page 32 
	Great Hearts America -Texas 
	SummarySchedule of l'rior Audit Findings 'l'~ar Ended June 30, 2016 
	Flndint 2015·001: Construction Payables 
	Prior Yeot Flfl<finp: Al June 30, 201S, tbe Organi~ation did not record the r('t.iinage payable of approidmately $--Sl9,000 and did not reeord tho June construcllon invoices of approximait-Oly $818,000. 
	Starus: Thi, finding has been cor,e,ted 1n the current ynr. 
	Finding 201S.002: Local Procurement Policies and Procedures 
	Prior Yeor Finding: The Organization's current polkias do not addre:r.s cc.mpetitfve procurement. 
	Stows: This finding has been corrected in ltie current year. 
	And In-& 2015-003; Procurtment and Suspension and ~barment 
	Federal Progn11m: 2013·2014 PCSSttlrt•Up Grants 
	Prior Year Findjng: The Organilatlon dlcl not fvltv follow the procutemcnt guidelines &nd ats.o did not check for suspension and debarment for three 'Vendors paid $Sl2.674 with the PCS start-up grent fvnds. However, the vendors used were not suspended or debarred. 
	Status: The Organization did not receive this grant in the current year. Currentyear procurement testing disdos,d issut"S which areinduded in finding 2016-001. No transactions occurred In the currentyear that requited the 01ganization to perform lhe suspemion and debarment verification. Our inquiry of mariegement lndftate-d policies and procedures haw been updated to include the suspension and debarment verlflc.;itlon on fvture trtinsaetions, 
	Anding 201S-004: Cas.h Management and Flnanclal Repottlng Federal Program: 2013-1014 PCS Start-Up Grants 
	Pr«Jr \'ear Finding: The Organization requested advance funds from TEA and did not make the disbutsem~nt of fund5 within three days. 
	Status: The Organlz3tion did not ,ecelvc thlS grant In the CtJl'rtnt year. Du~ to cuffent year tutnove, in the accountlnsfflnance depirtment, drawdown reque$1$ ln set1etal for (If the Org;)niz;'ltion were not timely subml"ed. 
	focler.il srant$ 
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	Great Hearts America -Texas 
	Corrective. Action Plan 
	Ye:at Ended June 30, 2016 
	Finding Z016·001: Procurement 
	Vlews of Aespons.Jbfe 0/ftclols ond Planned correuFVe AcliOIJ: M.1nigement .lgrees with the finding. During the year, ihe Organl1atlon developed new procurement procedures and imple~nted tho,e for vendors which wete ne-.v during 1he 20LS·l016 fiical year. The pt()(edures wlll be adhered to for c1tt vendors, as required, if not previousIv vetted through the process. 
	Responsible Person: Deborah Zimmerman 
	tmpftmentoUcn Dote: Immediately 
	Findln4 2016-002: Tempor..rify R@stric;ted Net Assets 
	Views ofRe.spons,'ble 0//i'clofsottdPlonnedCoMec-,lve A€H0it: M&na,3ement aerees With the findine. The Organi1atk>n has implemented a process bv \yhich a "proJecr code is used to i~ nUfy the amounts released from restriction. The procedutes m,;1nual wtll be upd.a1ed to l'eflect this procedural change. 
	ResponSJ'bfe Person: Deborah Zimmerman 
	Implementation Dore: Immediately 
	Finding 2016-003; Segregation ofDuties 
	Views of RespoMlb/e Officio/.$ and Pl'1Mtd CMtc-b'vt Action; Mantigcment agrett with the findmg. During fiscal year 2015·2016, the Organltatlon elCperlenccd Wr'nover In the flMncc ~rea. During much of lhe year, temporary help was utill2ed to continue the rovtlne proce-ss.lng. In April 2016, " full•tlme permanent Accounts Payable/Payroll position was filled; In May of 2016, a Senlo, Acooontant WM hlr~; and in August 2016, a full•time Human Resources Manager was hired. There kstlllone remaining posltloo budge
	Responsible Person: Oeborah ?Immerman 
	lmp/ementotion Date: Final hire to be made by December 31, 2016 







